
   Mayor 
James Kallander 
 

Council Members 
Tim Joyce 
James Kacsh 
David Allison 
Bret Bradford 
EJ Cheshier 
David Reggiani 
Robert Beedle 
 

Interim City Manager 
Donald Moore 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
 

Student Council 
Sarah Hoepfner 
Gabrielle Brown 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MARCH 06, 2013 @ 7:30 PM  
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 

AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the republic for 
which it stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with liberty and justice for all.  
 

C. ROLL CALL  
Mayor James Kallander, Council members Tim Joyce, James Kacsh, David Allison, 
Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and Robert Beedle  

  
  D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA………………………….……...… (voice vote) 

 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speakers – None 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items……………………………….....… (3 minutes per speaker) 

3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions  
 (Harbor, HSB, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board) 
4. Superintendent’s Report 
5. Student Council Representative’s Report 
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR……………………………………….….…. (roll call vote) 
6. Proclamation for National School Board recognition Month……………………...……………… (page 1) 
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
7. Minutes of 02-20-13 City Council Public Hearing………………………………..…….……..….. (page 2) 
8. Minutes of 02-20-13 City Council Regular Meeting………………………………..…….…...….. (page 3) 
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS  
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS   
9. Mayor’s Report 
10. Manager’s Report……………………………………………………………………….…..……. (page 8) 

11. City Clerk’s Report…………………………………………………………………..…..…….… (page 9) 

12. Staff Reports  
 a. Finance Report…………………………………………………………………………….…. (page 10) 
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
13. Letter from Schultz in re Mobile Grid Lease 02-20-13…………………………………..…….. (page 14) 
14. Letter from Mayor to Commissioner Kemp (AKDoT) 02-22-13………………………………. (page 15) 
15. Letter from EVOSTC to Mayor in re $1.3M funding 02-22-13……………………………..…. (page 16) 
16. Letter from Senator Begich to Mayor Kallander 02-06-13…………………………………..…. (page 17) 
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
17. Resolution 02-13-07……………………………………………………………….. (voice vote)(page 19) 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, authorizing the city manager to enter 
into a 2 year lease of property legally described as Lot 2, Block 7, North Fill Development Park 
with Ric and Osa Schultz (dba Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.) 



   

18. Resolution 03-13-10………………………………………….………………...….. (voice vote)(page 34) 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, adopting a Cordova Center 
Phase II project budget as summarized pursuant to the following table 

  

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
19. Council decision regarding Lot 3A Block 8 North Fill………………...………….. (voice vote)(page 38) 
20. Council’s quarterly discussion/decision to amend the CIP list…………..…......….. (voice vote)(page 48) 
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
21. Contract Approval with Dawson Construction for Cordova Center Phase II……... (voice vote)(page 49)  
22. Cordova Center Summary Business Plan and Integrated Schedule………………………....… (page 127) 
23. Mikunda Cottrell arrangement letter……….……………………………………….………..... (page 136) 
24. Pending Agenda and Calendar…………………………………………………………............ (page 145) 
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
25. Council Comments 
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
26. Cordova Center Phase I Attorney advice 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the government; (2) Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may 

request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) Matters involving 
consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure. 

 
If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions,  

you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
Full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net  



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
PROCLAMATION 

 

PROCLAMATION NAMING FEBRUARY 2013 
AS SCHOOL BOARD RECOGNITION MONTH 

 

I, Mayor James Kallander, do hereby issue this  
Proclamation Naming February 2013 as  

School Board Recognition Month in Cordova, Alaska 
 

WHEREAS, the mission of public schools is to meet the diverse educational 
needs of all children and to empower them to become competent, productive 
contributors to a democratic society and an ever-changing world; and 

 

WHEREAS, local school board members are committed to children and believe 
that all children can be successful learners and that the best education is tailored to 
the individual needs of the child; and  

 

WHEREAS, local school board members work closely with parents, 
educational professionals, and other community members to create the educational 
vision we want for our students; and  

 

WHEREAS, local school board members are responsible for ensuring the 
structure that provides a solid foundation for our school system; and 

 

WHEREAS, local school board members assure the assessment of students, 
school staff, and educational programs and are accountable to the community; and 

  

WHEREAS, local school board members are strong advocates for public 
education and are responsible for communicating the needs of the school district to 
the public and the public’s expectations to the district. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAMED that the Mayor and City 
Council members of Cordova do hereby express sincere appreciation to the School 
Board of the Cordova School District.   

 

BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED THAT, I urge all citizens to join me in 
recognizing the dedication and hard work of the Cordova School District’s school 
board members and in working with them to mold an education system that meets the 
needs of both today’s and tomorrow’s children. 

 

SIGNED THIS 6th DAY OF MARCH, 2013 
 

 
______________________________ 

James Kallander, Mayor 

1



DRAFT 

MINUTES – PUBLIC HEARING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 
PAGE 1 OF 1 

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 @ 7:15 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 
MINUTES 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor James Kallander called the Council public hearing to order at 7:18 pm on February 20, 
2013, in the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Mayor James Kallander and Council members Tim Joyce, James 

Kacsh, David Allison, Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and Robert Beedle. Also 
present were Interim City Manager Don Moore and City Clerk Susan Bourgeois.  
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Ordinance 1104 An ordinance of the City of Cordova, Alaska, exempting Lot 5, Block 5, 
Odiak Subdivision, from property taxation and any special assessments so long as a payment in 
lieu of taxes is paid by the Native Village of Eyak on the property and the property is used by the 
Native Village of Eyak as low-income housing 
2. Ordinance 1105 An ordinance of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the city 
administration to enter into a cooperation agreement with the Native Village of Eyak for 
payment in lieu of taxes on Lot 5, Block 5, Odiak Subdivision, so long as the property is used for 
low-income housing  
3. Ordinance 1106 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, repealing 
Cordova Municipal Code Chapter 14.28 entitled “hospital” and adopting Title 15 entitled “city 
owned medical facilities” which incorporates the provisions of Chapter 14.28 but requires the 
City Council to sit as the Hospital Service Board and updates the obligations of the medical staff 
and hospital administrator to reflect the City’s use of a hospital management company to 
administer City owned medical facilities 
 

Mayor James Kallander opened the meeting up for public comment – there was no public 
comment 
 

Council recessed the public hearing at 7:20 pm; then reconvened at 7:28 pm at which time 
Mayor James Kallander reopened the meeting for public comment – there was still no public 
comment 

 

D.  ADJOURNMENT 
M/ Bradford S/Joyce to adjourn the Public Hearing 
Hearing no objection, the Public Hearing was adjourned at 7:29 pm. 
 
Approved:  March 6, 2013 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
            Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

2



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 
PAGE 1 OF 5 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 @ 7:30 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  
MINUTES 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor James Kallander called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 7:30 pm on February 20, 2013, in 
the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor James Kallander led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Mayor James Kallander and Council members Tim Joyce, James Kacsh, David 

Allison, Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and Robert Beedle. Also present were Interim City 
Manager Don Moore, City Clerk Susan Bourgeois and Student Council representatives Sarah Hoepfner 
and Gabrielle Brown. 
 

D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
M/Reggiani S/Bradford to approve the Regular Agenda. 
Don Moore asked Council to remove agenda item 18 as he hadn’t had time to review it yet.  
M/Joyce S/Bradford to amend the regular agenda by removing agenda item 18 from tonight’s meeting. 
Kacsh asked Moore if there was a problem and Moore said no, that he just hadn’t reviewed the lease. He 
said it runs until April 20 and he hopes to have it back to Council before then. 
Vote on amendment: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes. Vote on main motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes. 
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Allison declared a conflict on agenda item 21 due to his employment by Eagle Contracting. Mayor 
Kallander agreed that he should recuse himself from that item. 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speaker – none 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items 
Osa Schultz 109 Council said the item she wanted to speak to was removed from the agenda. She handed the 
Clerk a letter that she asked be included in the packet when the item comes back before Council.  
 

Tom Bailer 304 Orca Inlet said he had questions about props 3 & 4. On page 23 of the packet he thought 
$145,900 seemed high for “Community Conservation Education Program” and on page 25 he thought the 
$650,000 for “building shell, insulation, roof” seemed high as well. Also, he wanted to know what would 
happen to any extra money in this project if it was leftover. He said private business would take any excess 
amount right back to the bank but government tends to say, what else can we spend the money on. He just 
wondered if these projects would be held to their costs.  
 

3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions 
Harbor Commission representative Beedle reported they had a meeting last Wednesday there was good 
attendance – the City Manager was there and Karen Swartzbart gave a report about the Clean Harbors. He 
handed out a North Fill plan/map that Harbor Commission had been asked to give to Council. Planner Sam 

Greenwood reminded Council that they had referred a North Fill purchase request to staff in order to have 
Harbor Commission get back with Council concerning a plan for the North Fill. Council said they would 
now like to see the Lot 3A North Fill agenda item on the next meeting. Beedle also mentioned that the 
Commission conducted the annual review of the master plan and looked at fees.  
HSB representative Allison reported that they had a special meeting tonight and they credentialed two 
doctors. 

3



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 
PAGE 2 OF 5 

 

P&R representative Kacsh reported that they met last night. They discussed Odiak Camper Park and 
planning for the area near the burn pile and whether it is worth looking into putting utilities in there. They 
also discussed community outreach and the need to get more kids into Bidarki. The Commission looked at 
their 10 year master plan as well. Bradford asked Kacsh to bring up the BMX track that is intended for 
around the park by the sandlot at the next commission meeting.  
P&Z representative Reggiani reported that there were three items on the agenda last week; request for an 
access easement adjacent to Fleming Spit area, update on SRTS – sidewalk up Third St. and they reviewed a 
lease application for space inside the high school. 
School Board representative Bradford said he was not in attendance at the last School Board meeting. 
4. Superintendent’s Report - Theresa Keel was not in attendance. 
5. Student Council Representative’s Report  
Hoepfner and Brown reported that Student Council elected new officers recently and Carl Ranney is the 
new President – all of the executive board was elected. The biggest occurrence presently is Homecoming 
which is this coming weekend and the theme is Candyland. This week was spirit week and there will be a 
pep assembly on Friday. Senior Appreciation night is Friday and the coronation and floats will be on 
Saturday both of these are during the ball games. Then there will be the homecoming dance Saturday night. 
The girls mentioned that they thank Council for allowing them to be Student Council reps to the City 
Council because they hear that elsewhere that isn’t the case. They are lucky to get to brag about this at their 
annual student government conferences.  
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
Mayor James Kallander informed Council that the consent calendar was before them. 
6. Resolution 02-13-08 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing 
creation of a city manager assessment committee to assist with the selection process of a new city manager 
and to make recommendations to the City Council on final interviewees 
7. Resolution 02-13-09 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, opposing the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration’s preliminary finding of no significant effect on the quality of the human 
environment in the United States with approval of Aquabounty Technologies, Inc.’s application to market 
genetically modified Atlantic salmon in the United States 
8. Council concurrence of Mayor’s appointment of Election Board for 2013 
Vote on Consent Calendar: 7yeas, 0 nays. Cheshier-yes; Bradford-yes; Beedle-yes; Joyce-yes; Kacsh-yes; 
Allison-yes; Reggiani-yes. Motion passes. 
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
M/Cheshier S/Bradford to approve the minutes. 
9. Minutes of 02-06-13 City Council Regular Meeting 

Vote on motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes. 
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS – None. 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

10. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Kallander reported that there’s a lot going on in Juneau – the majority caucus has split into two. He 
has had quite a few meetings with the City Manager. He’s been reviewing budgets in preparation for the 
EVOS teleconference tomorrow morning. He met with Bitney, Stavig, Cathy and Moore. He also attended a 
construction meeting and he encourages Council to do so as well. 
 

11. Manager’s Report  
Don Moore informed council that he included a write up on Props 3 & 4 in his written report in the packet 
hoping that information would be useful for Council members. Moore reported that a refuse foreman has 
been hired, Brandon Dahl. Don also reported that George Wintle has been offered the job and has accepted 

4



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 
PAGE 3 OF 5 

 

the job of Police Chief. Moore mentioned that he attached an active list on City construction projects and 
said that the list demonstrates that our Construction Management resources are saturated. Moore had a 
meeting with the CRWP and CCMC concerning protecting Odiak Lake and need for snow removal. He 
identified some major revenue receipts that we have received the last couple of weeks which amounts to 
$1,896,000. Also, today he was noticed that we received a $642,000 school bond payment. He handed out 
bound budget books as well as a detailed expenditures report that the Finance Director has been working on 
and he expects Council should get one like this at least monthly – but asked for their opinion on what they 
wanted. The museum artifacts got moved timely from CEC to the Hospital – there was a great deal of help 
that was appreciated. Moore will be out of the office February 22 – 26 – heading to Anchorage for meetings 
on Monday and Tuesday – Cathy Sherman will be Acting Manager.  
Mayor Kallander asked Council what they wanted for the financial reports. After each weighed in the Mayor 
summarized and got a concurrence from Council that they would like to see a one page summary report 
monthly including some language that speaks to how things are going. They also thought that quarterly 
reports with the detail would be appropriate.  
 

12. City Clerk’s Report  
Bourgeois reported that she was hoping to schedule training as soon as possible for newly elected Council 
members after the Election. She would ask for feedback next time. Beedle asked the Clerk if a School Board 
candidate had pulled out of the race. She said that Ron Horton is the Junior High wrestling coach and cannot 
be elected to school board and remain the coach so he decided to pull his name.  
 

13. Staff Reports  
 a. Buck Adams, UBS Financial, City Investments – said that the City has about $14.4M under 
management at this time. The combined net return of all City funds last year was 4.32%. When he wrote 
this letter there was a $500K balance on the line of credit but he said it has subsequently been paid off. He 
said the line of credit has been an important tool; has helped with the snow emergency as well as with the 
Cordova Center. It has allowed us to not sell and reinvest at perhaps an inopportune time. Overall Buck is 
very satisfied with the return on investments for Cordova (4.32%) – the average hedge fund saw a 5.15% 
rate of return. 
 Reggiani thanked Buck for putting the report together and for his hard work. He said that this has 
worked out better than he ever expected when Council opted to invest with UBS three years ago. Every 
investment dollar earned is less that needs to be raised in taxes so that hits home for him.  
 b. Moe Zamarron, Public Works Director – he said he could answer any questions regarding 
propositions 3 & 4. Joyce asked if Zamarron could respond to what Tom Bailer had commented on during 
audience comments. He said that the numbers presented are not completely nailed down and they do appear 
inflated now. Zamarron said that if it all comes in less, of course we will not spend the money. We will only 
use what we need. He said he will put a lot of information out there (i.e. education of the public) on these 
projects. As far as the baler project, the building shell number may be high but he wants to cover his bases – 
it’s an old building that’s really coming apart. 
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
14. US Dept of Transportation EAS to Alaska Air Letter 02-10-13 
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
15. Ordinance 1104 an ordinance of the City of Cordova, Alaska, exempting Lot 5, Block 5, Odiak 
Subdivision, from property taxation and any special assessments so long as a payment in lieu of taxes is paid 
by the Native Village of Eyak on the property and the property is used by the Native Village of Eyak as low-
income housing 
M/Reggiani S/Joyce to adopt Ordinance 1104 an ordinance of the City of Cordova, Alaska, exempting Lot 5, 
Block 5, Odiak Subdivision, from property taxation and any special assessments so long as a payment in lieu 

5



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 
PAGE 4 OF 5 

 

of taxes is paid by the Native Village of Eyak on the property and the property is used by the Native Village 
of Eyak as low-income housing 
Vote on motion: 7yeas, 0 nays. Joyce-yes; Beedle-yes; Cheshier-yes; Reggiani-yes Kacsh-yes; Bradford-yes 
and Allison-yes. Motion passes. 
 

16. Ordinance 1105 an ordinance of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the city administration to enter 
into a cooperation agreement with the Native Village of Eyak for payment in lieu of taxes on Lot 5, Block 5, 
Odiak Subdivision, so long as the property is used for low-income housing 
M/Bradford S/Kacsh to adopt an ordinance of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the city 
administration to enter into a cooperation agreement with the Native Village of Eyak for payment in lieu of 
taxes on Lot 5, Block 5, Odiak Subdivision, so long as the property is used for low-income housing 
Vote on motion: 7yeas, 0 nays. Cheshier-yes; Joyce-yes; Bradford-yes; Beedle-yes; Kacsh-yes; Allison-yes 
and Reggiani-yes. Motion passes. 
 

17. Ordinance 1106 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, repealing Cordova 
Municipal Code Chapter 14.28 entitled “hospital” and adopting Title 15 entitled “city owned medical 
facilities” which incorporates the provisions of Chapter 14.28 but requires the City Council to sit as the 
Hospital Service Board and updates the obligations of the medical staff and hospital administrator to reflect 
the City’s use of a hospital management company to administer City owned medical facilities 
M/Cheshier S/ Bradford to adopt Ordinance 1106 an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, repealing Cordova Municipal Code Chapter 14.28 entitled “hospital” and adopting Title 15 entitled 
“city owned medical facilities” which incorporates the provisions of Chapter 14.28 but requires the City 
Council to sit as the Hospital Service Board and updates the obligations of the medical staff and hospital 
administrator to reflect the City’s use of a hospital management company to administer City owned medical 
facilities 
M/Allison S/Bradford to amend the ordinance on page 81, 15.20.010 F. delete “on the first Monday” and 
replace it with “in concurrence with the first Council meeting”. 
Vote on amendment: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes. 
Vote on main motion: 7yeas, 0 nays. Kacsh-yes; Bradford-yes; Joyce-yes; Cheshier-yes; Beedle-yes; 
Reggiani-yes and Allison-yes. Motion passes. 
 

18. Resolution 02-13-07 a resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, authorizing the city 
manager to enter into a 2 year lease of property legally described as Lot 2, Block 7, North Fill Development 
Park with Ric and Osa Schultz (dba Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.) 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None  
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
19. Request for lease of City land: portion of High School Bldg. (USS 2637) 
M/Allison S/Cheshier that the City dispose of 1203 square feet of classroom and office space at the High 

School Building (USS 2637) for not less than fair market value as outlined in chapter 5.22.060A 1. (by 
negotiating an agreement with the person who applied to lease or purchase the property). 
Reggiani asked a question about the term of this lease. Greenwood said this was a proposed lease and now it 
would be seen by the Attorneys for finalization. Greenwood reminded Council that there is a 30 day 
termination clause. 
Vote on motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes. 
 

20. Council concurrence of Mayor’s appointments to the City Manager Assessment Committee 
M/Cheshier S/Bradford to approve Mayor Kallander’s appointments of Cindy Bradford, Mark 
Frohnapfel, Don Sjostedt, Kelly Weaverling, EJ Cheshier, James Kacsh and Dave Reggiani to the City 
Manager Assessment Committee to serve until the committee is deemed no longer necessary. 

6



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 20, 2013 
PAGE 5 OF 5 

 

Vote on motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes. 
 

21. Contract Approval with Eagle Contracting for Eyak Lake WTP Chemical Mezzanine Structural Repairs 
M/Bradford S/Joyce to direct the City Manager to enter into a contract with Eagle Contracting Corporation, 

to perform structural repairs to the Eyak Lake Water Treatment Plant Chemical Mezzanine and associated 
work for a sum of Thirty Six Thousand Four Hundred and Twenty Five dollars and seventy cents 
($36,425.70). 
Joyce asked how many bids were received. Moore said this was the only one? 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 conflict of interest (Allison). Motion passes. 
 

22. Pending Agenda and Calendar 
There were no additions or deletions to the calendar. The Clerk reminded Council of a work session 
Thursday evening February 23 at 7pm. The Clerk also reminded the audience that absentee voting in person 
was occurring at City Hall from 8am – 5pm M-F until Monday March 4, 2013. Kacsh said that Parks and 
Rec had a special meeting scheduled for Monday March 12 at the City Hall Conference Room.  
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
Tom Bailer 304 Orca Inlet said that if the Harbor plan talks about moving roads, then it really should come 
to P&Z. He thanked staff for answering his concerns about the costs associated with props 3 & 4. He also 
wondered if Reggiani could clarify what he had spoken about regarding the City investments (i.e. what we 
were getting and what we are getting now). He asked whoever the School Board rep is if they could push the 
SRTS thing because it’s been languishing. 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
23. Council Comments  
Cheshier thanked Kacsh for changing his wife’s tire this morning so she could get to work on time. 
Reggiani answered Bailer’s question by saying that prior to soliciting for professional investment services, 
the City had its money invested in AMLIP (Alaska municipal league investment pool) which was getting a 
rate of return of ¼ %. We have done very well with UBS (approx. 2.4% since inception). $289,000 in cash 
last year – a total gain of $700K last year (including dividends and capital appreciation). 
Cheshier wanted to pat Reggiani on the back about that because it was his idea to invest City funds with a 
professional investment firm – has been good for the City. 
Bradford gave kudos to Moe about finding the water leaks and he said that he will mention SRTS at the next 
School Board meeting for sure. 
Joyce said that there is a potential for a run-off election and Council might want to revisit the Election code 
on that – maybe absentee balloting needs to be look into – as to most effective way to address absentee 
voting with a run-off scenario.  
Kacsh good short meeting and he welcome the new Chief of Police. 
Mayor Kallander also welcomed the Chief and thanked the staff at the hospital for getting the Clinic doors 
open so quickly and efficiently. 
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None 
  

R. ADJOURNMENT 
M/Kacsh S/Bradford to adjourn the regular meeting at 8:50 pm 
Vote on motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

Approved: March 06, 2013 
 
 

Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk  

7



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To:            Mayor and City Council 
From:       Donald L. Moore, Interim City Manager 
Subject:   Manager’s Report-March 6, 2013 
Date:        February 28, 2013 
 
 
Cordova Community Center: I have enclosed correspondence from the City Attorney 
and a separate letter from me to the project Architect related to the status of the City’s 
defense of the Request for Equitable Adjustment (REA) filed by the phase 1 contractor, 
AMI. 
Because the REA defense is a legal matter that affects the City’s finances I have 
provided the correspondence under separate cover to be discussed in Executive 
Session. 
 
PERS  Audit Response: I met with the Attorney to work on a response to the draft 
PERS Audit that was received by the City on January 22nd. This report is preparing four 
findings involving eight current or former city employees and contract workers.  
The report does not identify the remedy or the costs of any adverse findings, which is 
one of our comments in the response document.  
We have already noted several errors or misinterpretations in the draft findings that will 
be addressed, such as the inclusion of School District employees as City Employees. 
We will forward a copy of the response and the final audit to the Council. 
 
Mikunda Cotrell & Co. (City External Auditors): I met with the auditors preliminary to the 
2012 year end audit which is scheduled for April.  
Several specific issues were identified, mostly related to the CCMC reorganization, 
which requires additional material prior to the audit. 
We also discussed the Cordova Center construction project financing and issues related 
to the REA. 
Although I delivered the engagement letter to this firm for the 2012 audit, the Mayor has 
brought to my attention that these services have not been circulated for competitive 
proposals for several years.  
If the Council wishes to solicit proposals I recommend you should do so promptly after 
receiving the current firm completes the 2012 audit.    
  
 
 
   
 
 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

8



 

 

 
  
CITY CLERK’S REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 

March 06, 2013 Regular Council Meeting 
 

Date of Report: February 21- March 1, 2013 
 

Things I need feedback on or am reporting back to Council on: 

 DCCED, DCRA (department  of com m unity and regional affairs)  run by previous Cordova Clerk, 

Elizabeth Manfred offers free local governm ent  assistance in the form  of t raining for newly 

elected or appointed board/ commission/ council members. I  would like her to come soon after 

the elect ion. I  will keep you informed 

Things the Clerk’s Office has been working on: 

 Signed paychecks/ other AP checks 

 Prepared agendas and packets for work session on 02-21-13 and regular m tg on 03-06-13  

 Deputy Clerk cont inues toward finalizat ion of the 2013 property tax roll;  assessment  not ices out  

March 8, then a one month appeal period followed by Board of Equalizat ion on April 15 

 Tina also working on delinquencies and will begin preparing for the foreclosure not ice to be 

published in Cordova Times March 1, 8, 15, 22 

 Elect ion Day:  Tuesday March 5, 2013;  created ballots and prepared for absentee in person and 

began mailing absentee by mail ballots per applicat ions received;  applicat ions for absentee by 

mail accepted unt il February 26 

 Absentee by mail ended and there were 35 sent  – another 35 or so have voted in person and 

that  cont inues unt il March 4 at  5PM 

 Held t raining session/ meet ing of Elect ion Board on Tuesday February 26 

 Sent  Frankenfish resolut ion to FDA as a com m ent through their website after passage by Council 

on February 20, 2013 

 Prepared advert isement  for Cordova Tim es with nam es of all who signed the Trapping Pet it ion  

 At tended staff m eet ing on Thursday February 28 

 Teleconference with Caselle including Deputy Clerk and Finance staff in re new property tax 

software – should be up and running in t ime for tax bills and collect ion later in summer 

 Conferred with at torney in re APOC rules re campaigning and spoke with two candidates 

regarding APOC 

 Assisted Mayor with let ter to DoT com m issioner Kem p – in packet  under correspondence 

 Completed m inutes of Regular Meet ing February 20, 2013 

 

City of Cordova,  
Office of the City Clerk 
Cordova, AK  99574 
602 Railroad Avenue *  PO Box 1210 

Phone:  907.424.6248 
Fax:  907.424.6000 
Cell:  907.253.6248 
E-m ail:  cityclerk@cityofcordova.net  

9



MEMO, City of Cordova 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
Through: Donald L. Moore, Interim City Manager 
 
From:   Jon K. Stavig, Finance Director 
 
Date:  February 26, 2013  
 
RE:   Finance Department Report 
 
 
Following are the monthly financial reports for the first two months of 2013. 
 
The report consists of two parts.  The first part of report includes a fund summary for the general 

fund only.  The period actual column only includes activity for the first two months of the 1st 

quarter, the ytd column includes all activity for the same period of time ended 2-26-13 and 

budget and variance columns are self-explanatory. 

 

The second part of the report includes all funds including the enterprise funds.  The format is the 

same as above. The period actual column includes activity for the first two months of the 1st 

quarter; the ytd actual column includes all activity for the same period of time ended 02-26-13 

and budget and variance columns. 

 

Most notable figures within the reports are the revenues from the City’s National Forest 

Receipts, School Debt Reimbursement from the State, grant funds reimbursement (harbor) and 

quarterly sales tax receipts.  The finance department has processed through February 26, 2013, 

246 tax returns for $524,071 in tax revenue.  Last years’ totals the same time frame are 255 

returns for $514,198 in tax revenue. 

 

 We pushed out the 2013 Operating Budget Booklet this past week and are currently gathering 

items for the audit preparation package to be delivered to the City’s auditors. 

 

All to report from the Finance Department. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jon K. Stavig 
10



CITY OF CORDOVA
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 16 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/26/2013     01:12PM       PAGE: 1

REVENUE

TAXES 447,498.32 447,498.32 5,718,500.00 5,271,001.68 7.8
LICENSES & PERMITS 235.00 235.00 16,300.00 16,065.00 1.4
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL 951,549.68 951,549.68 3,066,537.64 2,114,987.96 31.0
LEASES & RENTS 14,559.75 14,559.75 171,020.00 156,460.25 8.5
LAW ENFORCEMENT 79,393.85 79,393.85 333,900.00 254,506.15 23.8
D. M. V. 20,849.60 20,849.60 92,500.00 71,650.40 22.5
PLANNING DEPARTMENT REVENUE 290.00 290.00 29,000.00 28,710.00 1.0
RECREATION DEPT REVENUE 6,447.50 6,447.50 77,000.00 70,552.50 8.4
POOL REVENUE 3,958.50 3,958.50 34,200.00 30,241.50 11.6
SALE OF PROPERTY .00 .00 6,500.00 6,500.00 .0
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 41,003.65 41,003.65 492,043.75 451,040.10 8.3
OTHER REVENUE 3,003.22 3,003.22 225,000.00 221,996.78 1.3
STATE DEBT SERVICE REIMBURSME 642,773.00 642,773.00 976,276.00 333,503.00 65.8

2,211,562.07 2,211,562.07 11,238,777.39 9,027,215.32 19.7

EXPENDITURES

CITY COUNCIL 3,028.93 3,028.93 23,000.00 19,971.07 13.2
CITY CLERK 29,663.46 29,663.46 240,999.77 211,336.31 12.3
CITY MANAGER 37,681.39 37,681.39 399,368.41 361,687.02 9.4
FINANCE 72,381.00 72,381.00 423,517.81 351,136.81 17.1
PLANNING DEPARTMENT EXPENSE 18,864.23 18,864.23 212,763.46 193,899.23 8.9
PLANNING COMMISSION 58.42 58.42 6,500.00 6,441.58 .9
DEPTARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLE 8,332.37 8,332.37 76,825.96 68,493.59 10.9
LAW ENFORCEMENT 90,091.74 90,091.74 892,295.09 802,203.35 10.1
JAIL OPERATIONS 23,669.01 23,669.01 231,298.95 207,629.94 10.2
FIRE & EMS 43,564.10 43,564.10 320,000.18 276,436.08 13.6
DISASTER MANAGEMENT DEPT. .00 .00 7,500.00 7,500.00 .0
INFORMATION SERVICES 46,195.60 46,195.60 472,652.75 426,457.15 9.8
FACILITY UTILITIES 26,878.34 26,878.34 156,300.00 129,421.66 17.2
PW ADMINISTRATION 13,913.03 13,913.03 122,272.32 108,359.29 11.4
FACILITY  MAINTENANCE 26,770.12 26,770.12 211,713.28 184,943.16 12.6
STREET MAINTENANCE 50,293.20 50,293.20 619,784.04 569,490.84 8.1
SNOW REMOVAL 305.66 305.66 79,650.00 79,344.34 .4
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 33,086.21 33,086.21 299,779.39 266,693.18 11.0
PARKS MAINTENANCE 6,240.35 6,240.35 103,904.25 97,663.90 6.0
CEMETERY MAINTENANCE DEPT. .00 .00 8,275.00 8,275.00 .0
RECREATION - BIDARKI 43,463.14 43,463.14 406,073.52 362,610.38 10.7
POOL 36,511.52 36,511.52 284,467.98 247,956.46 12.8
SKI HILL 15,258.44 15,258.44 58,400.00 43,141.56 26.1
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 24,266.53 24,266.53 337,145.00 312,878.47 7.2
LONG TERM DEBT SERVICE 997,980.58 997,980.58 1,699,924.00 701,943.42 58.7
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 978,592.00 978,592.00 978,592.07 .07 100.0
TRANSFERS TO OTHER ENTITIES 318,592.15 318,592.15 3,101,983.16 2,783,391.01 10.3

11



CITY OF CORDOVA
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 16 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/26/2013     01:12PM       PAGE: 2

2,945,681.52 2,945,681.52 11,774,986.39 8,829,304.87 25.0

(            734,119.45) (            734,119.45) (            536,209.00) 197,910.45 (136.9)

12



CITY OF CORDOVA
FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2013

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 16 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  02/26/2013     01:12PM       PAGE: 3

REVENUE

101 GENERAL FUND 2,211,562.07 2,211,562.07 11,238,777.39 9,027,215.32 19.7
104 CITY PERMANENT FUND 1,050,221.59 1,050,221.59 1,210,007.93 159,786.34 86.8
203 FIRE DEPT. VEHICLE ACQUISITION .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0
205 VEHICLE REMOVAL/IMPOUND FUND 33,000.00 33,000.00 33,000.00 .00 100.0
401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 622,583.25 622,583.25 854,970.00 232,386.75 72.8
410 CHIP SEAL C.I.P. 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .00 100.0
435 HOSPITAL REPAIR PROJECT 339,139.37 339,139.37 1,028,155.00 689,015.63 33.0
502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 50,773.94 50,773.94 1,037,570.41 986,796.47 4.9
503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 49,752.36 49,752.36 731,830.00 682,077.64 6.8
504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 45,755.79 45,755.79 735,270.00 689,514.21 6.2
505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 57,228.50 57,228.50 942,625.00 885,396.50 6.1
506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 1,429.04 1,429.04 61,167.25 59,738.21 2.3
602 HARBOR & PORT PROJECTS 869,754.34 869,754.34 103,235.00 (            766,519.34) 842.5
603 SEWER PROJECTS 104,857.00 104,857.00 709,857.00 605,000.00 14.8
605 SOLID WASTE PROJECTS 284,000.00 284,000.00 1,506,000.00 1,222,000.00 18.9
654 LT2 COMPLIANCE PROJECT .00 .00 3,605,000.00 3,605,000.00 .0
702 HARBOR FUND DEP'N RESERVE 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 100.0
703 SEWER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .00 100.0
704 WATER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .00 100.0
705 REFUSE FUND DEP'N RESERVE FUN 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .00 100.0
805 LANDFILL FUND 50,000.00 50,000.00 25,000.00 (              25,000.00) 200.0

6,170,057.25 6,170,057.25 24,232,464.98 18,062,407.73 25.5

EXPENDITURES

101 GENERAL FUND 2,945,681.52 2,945,681.52 11,774,986.39 8,829,304.87 25.0
104 CITY PERMANENT FUND 466,787.93 466,787.93 466,787.93 .00 100.0
401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 26,335.82 26,335.82 945,925.50 919,589.68 2.8
410 CHIP SEAL C.I.P. .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0
435 HOSPITAL REPAIR PROJECT 64,478.13 64,478.13 1,028,155.00 963,676.87 6.3
502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 197,591.75 197,591.75 1,037,570.41 839,978.66 19.0
503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 179,472.27 179,472.27 731,830.00 552,357.73 24.5
504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 176,011.46 176,011.46 735,270.00 559,258.54 23.9
505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 233,040.51 233,040.51 942,625.00 709,584.49 24.7
506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 4,176.51 4,176.51 57,255.25 53,078.74 7.3
602 HARBOR & PORT PROJECTS 154,217.00 154,217.00 103,235.00 (              50,982.00) 149.4
603 SEWER PROJECTS .00 .00 709,857.00 709,857.00 .0
605 SOLID WASTE PROJECTS 18,312.01 18,312.01 1,506,000.00 1,487,687.99 1.2
654 LT2 COMPLIANCE PROJECT 8,504.28 8,504.28 3,605,000.00 3,596,495.72 .2
702 HARBOR FUND DEP'N RESERVE 103,235.00 103,235.00 103,235.00 .00 100.0
703 SEWER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 104,857.00 104,857.00 104,857.00 .00 100.0
705 REFUSE FUND DEP'N RESERVE FUN 284,000.00 284,000.00 284,000.00 .00 100.0

4,966,701.19 4,966,701.19 24,186,589.48 19,219,888.29 20.5

1,203,356.06 1,203,356.06 45,875.50 (         1,157,480.56) 2623.1

13



14



15



16



17



18



  

Memorandum 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From:  Donald L. Moore, Interim City Manager  

Date: 3/1/2013 

Re: Mobile Grid Lease 

PART I.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
File No.:   02-060-136-1 
 

Requested Action:   Approval of Resolution 02-13-07 
 
Survey: Lot 2, Block 7, North Fill Development Park  
 
PART II.  BACKGROUND: 
 
After discussing and reviewing the land disposal procedure,  the  City Council should consider the option 
of an 18 month lease is recommended for the reason below. There has been interest for land in the 
industrial zone.  The last lot disposed of in this area had a total of three proposals; one would be applicable 
to this lot.  One of the proposals for the lot 6 on the south fill would also meet the zoning codes for this 
area and I have received inquiries from two additional entities about the availability of property in this 
area. Also Mobile Grid has a vested interest in this lot.   
 
The expiration of this lease is right at the start of the fishing season and a very busy time for Mobile Grid 
as well as other business and people in the community.  If Council is considering making this lot available, 
an 18 month lease to Mobile Grid would provide for a time frame when Mobile Grid, as well as others, 
could research and develop their proposals in the off season.  
 
I have roughed out a time frame below to demonstrate the timing of an 18 month lease.  
 

 Lease brought before council August 2014 for review; City Council makes available and puts out 
for proposal   

 September/October - Request for proposals out to public for 30 days.  

 Lease expires October 20th 2014 – goes into hold over clause until proposal period is complete 

 November 2014 - 30 day proposal period ends, proposal goes to P&Z 

 November/December 2014 - City council reviews recommendation and proposals and awards lot 

 If Mobile Grid is awarded purchase hold over continues until closing; if not time frame for clearing 
the lot will be determined 

19



 

 2 

 January 2015 -purchase agreements, performance deed of trust and ordinance 1st reading and 
second reading 

 February 2015-30 day wait for ordinance 

 March 2015-60 days to closing 
 
 
The Manager recommends Council authorize the city manager to enter into an 18 month lease of 
property legally described as Lot 2, block 7, North Fill Development Park with  Ric and Osa Shultz 
(dba Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.) 

 
 

20



  

Memorandum 

To: City Council and City Manager 

From:  Planning Department staff 

Date: 3/1/2013 

Re: Mobile Grid Lease 

PART I.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
File No.:   02-060-136-1 
 

Requested Action:   Approval of Resolution 02-13-07 
 
Survey: Lot 2, Block 7, North Fill Development Park  
 
PART II.  BACKGROUND: 
 
Ric and Osa Schultz dba Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc. have been leasing Lot 2, Block 7, North Fill 
Development Park since 2003.  The taxes and lease payments have been timely for the duration of the last 
lease.  
 
The allowed uses for this lease are  
 

4. USES AND CONDITION OF PREMISES 
 
A.  Authorized Uses.  Use of the Premises shall be limited to haul out facilities, boat and trailer 

storage, and towing facilities, operated by Lessee, and the leased premises shall not, without prior 
written consent of the Lessor, be used for any other purposes.  Lessor expressly reserves the right to 
terminate this lease in the event Lessee fails to operate said use for a period of eighteen consecutive 
months.   
 
The tenants have maintained the uses and conditions as described during the lease. The term of this lease 
will be two years, commencing on April 20, 2013 and expiring on April 20, 2015.  
 
PART III.  SUGGESTED MOTION 
 

 “I move to approve Resolution 02-13-07.” 

21



DRAFT 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 02-13-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 2 YEAR LEASE OF PROPERTY LEGALLY 

DESCRIBED AS LOT 2, BLOCK 7, NORTH FILL DEVELOPMENT PARK WITH RIC AND 
OSA SCHULTZ (DBA MOBILE GRID TRAILERS, INC.) 

 
 WHEREAS, the lease term with the Ric and Osa Schultz (dba Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.). will 
commence on April 20th, 2013, the lease would carry their tenancy through April 20th, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the lease with the Ric and Osa Schultz (dba Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.) is generally 
described as Lot 2, Block 7, North Fill Development Park, Plat 86-6, located within Cordova Recording 
District, Cordova Alaska; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the annual rental rate will be Seven thousand five hundred eighty-four dollars and 
eight cents ($7,584.08); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Administration proposes entering into the lease so long as the terms of the 
original lease remain in force; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the lease between the City of Cordova and the Ric and Osa Schultz (dba Mobile 
Grid Trailers, Inc.) is hereto attached as Attachment A. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Cordova 
hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to renew the lease on the property to the Ric and Osa 
Schultz (dba Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.) in accordance with the terms in the Lease.  The form and content 
of the Lease now before this meeting is in all respects authorized, approved and confirmed by this 
resolution, and the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the 
Lease reflecting the terms in the Lease on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now 
before this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein as he shall deem 
necessary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of 
any and all changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said 
documents now before this meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said documents, the 
City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and things and to execute all 
documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Lease. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6th DAY OF MARCH, 2013. 
        
  
       ________________________________  
       James Kallander, Mayor  
 

 Attest: 
 

________________________________  
  Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

22



CITY OF CORDOVA 
Cordova, Alaska 

 
GROUND LEASE 

 
 

THIS LEASE (“Lease”) by and between the CITY OF CORDOVA, a municipal corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Alaska (the “City”), and Ric and Osa Schultz (dba 
Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.) doing business in Cordova, Alaska (“Lessee”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the City owns that certain unimproved parcel of land in Cordova, Alaska generally 
described as Lot 2, Block 7, North Fill Development Park, Plat 86-6, located within Cordova Recording 
District, Cordova Alaska, (referred to hereinafter as the “Premises”); and  
 

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease the Premises from the City, and Lessor desires to lease the 
Premises to Lessee, on the terms and conditions set forth herein; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Cordova City Council (“Council”) has approved the lease of the Premises from 

the City to Lessee in accordance with the Cordova City Charter §5-17 and Chapter 5.22 of the Cordova 
Municipal Code (hereinafter referred to as the “Code” or “CMC”). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants of the parties 

hereto, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES   
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the City hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee 
hereby leases from the City, the Premises.  
 

2. LEASE TERM 
 

The term of this Lease shall be two (2) year, commencing on April 20, 2013. 
The “Commencement Date”) and expiring two (2) years later, on April 20, 2015, unless earlier 

terminated in accordance with the terms of this Lease. 
 

 
3. RENT 

 

A.  Base Rent.  The rent during the term of this Lease shall be Seven thousand five 
hundred and eighty-four dollars and eight cents ($7584.08) or Six Hundred Thirty Two Dollars 
($632.00) in twelve monthly installments (the “Base Rent”), which shall be due and payable in advance on 
the Commencement Date of this agreement. Base Rent shall be paid to the City in lawful money of the 
United States without abatement, deduction or set-off for any reason whatsoever, at the address provided 
for notice to the City set forth in Section 20.E of this Lease, or at any other place that the City may from 
time to time direct in writing.  Base Rent shall be paid promptly when due without notice or demand 
therefor.  The parties intend the Base Rent to be absolutely net to the City.  All costs, expenses and 
obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever in connection with or relating to the Premises shall be the 
obligation of, and shall be paid by, Lessee.  As required by the CMC Section 5.22.040(C), any lease 
having a term of more than two (2) years shall be subject to a rental adjustment to fair market value at 
intervals of no more than two (2) years, but no adjustment shall result in a reduction of rent.     
 

B.  Additional Charges.  In addition to the Base Rent, Lessee acknowledges and agrees that 
Lessee is obligated to pay and shall pay, before delinquency and without reimbursement, all costs, 

23



expenses and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever in connection with or relating to the 
Premises or the activities conducted on the Premises, including without limitation those costs, expenses 
and obligations identified in Section 7 and all other sums, costs, expenses, taxes (including 6% sales tax, 
which shall be paid by Lessee monthly at the same time Lessee makes its monthly payments of Base 
Rent to the City) and other payments that Lessee assumes or agrees to pay under the provisions of this 
Lease (the “Additional Charges”). 

Without limiting in any way Lessee’s payment obligations, the City shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, at all times during the Lease term, to pay any charges levied or imposed upon the Premises 
that remain unpaid after the same have become due and payable, and the amount paid, plus the City’s 
reasonable expenses, shall be additional rent due from Lessee to the City, with interest thereon at the 
rate of ten percent (10%) per annum from the date of payment thereof by the City until repayment thereof 
by Lessee. 

 
C.  Late Penalty Provision.  Rent not paid within ten (10) days of the due date shall be assessed 

a late charge of ten percent (10%) of the delinquent amount; such charge shall be considered liquidated 
damages and shall be due and payable as additional rent.  In the event the late charge assessment 
above exceeds the maximum amount allowable by law, the amount assessed will be adjusted to the 
maximum amount allowable by law. 

 
 D.  Security Deposit.  Upon execution of this Lease, the City may require Lessee to deposit with 
the City an amount equal to two months’ rent (the “Security Deposit”).  The Security Deposit shall be held 
by the City as security for the faithful performance by Lessee of all of Lessee’s obligations under this 
Lease.   If Lessee fails to pay the Base Rent, or a portion thereof, or otherwise defaults with respect to 
any provision of this Lease, after notice and beyond the expiration of any applicable cure period the City 
may use, apply or retain all or any portion of the Security Deposit for:  
 
  (i) the payment of any rent or other sum in default;  
 
  (ii)  the payment of any other sum to which the City may become obligated by reason of 
Lessee's default; or  
 
  (iii)  to compensate the City for any  loss or damage which the City may suffer thereby, 
including, but not limited to, any costs associated with moving and storage of Lessee’s personal property 
(if any) remaining on the Premises beyond termination of the Lease.  The City shall be free to commingle 
the Security Deposit with funds held in the City’s own accounts, including accounts in which the City 
keeps other security deposits.  If Lessee performs all of its obligations under this Lease, the Security 
Deposit, or so much thereof as has not been used, applied or retained by the City in accordance with this 
Section, shall be returned to Lessee, at the expiration of the term, and subject to Lessee relinquishing 
possession of the Premises, without payment of interest or other increment for its use, within 30 days of 
Lessee’s vacation of the Premises.   
 

4. USES AND CONDITION OF PREMISES 
 
A.  Authorized Uses.  Use of the Premises shall be limited to haul out facilities, boat and trailer 

storage, and towing facilities, operated by Lessee, and the leased premises shall not, without prior written 
consent of the Lessor, be used for any other purposes.  Lessor expressly reserves the right to terminate 
this lease in the event Lessee fails to operate said use for a period of eighteen consecutive months.   
 

B.  Inspections.  The City and its authorized representatives and agents shall have the right, but 
not the obligation, to enter the Premises at all reasonable times to inspect the use and condition of the 
Premises; to serve, post or keep posted any notices required or allowed under the provisions of this 
Lease, including notices of non-responsibility for liens; and to do any act or thing necessary for the safety 
or preservation of the Premises.  The City shall not be liable in any manner for any inconvenience, 
disturbance, loss of business, nuisance or other damage arising out of the City’s entry onto the Premises, 
except for damage resulting directly from the acts of the City or its authorized representatives or agents.   
 

24



C.  Compliance with Laws.  Lessee shall maintain and repair the Premises in compliance with 
all applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, rules, orders, permits, licenses and other authorizations.  
Lessee shall not use or permit the use of the Premises for any purpose prohibited by law or which would 
cause a cancellation of any insurance policy covering the Premises.  Lessee shall not leave the Premises 
unoccupied or vacant without the City’s prior written consent.  Lessee shall not cause or permit any 
Hazardous Material (as defined in Section 9.B of this Lease) to be brought upon, kept, or used in, on or 
about the Premises except for such Hazardous Material as is necessary to conduct Lessee’s authorized 
uses of the Premises.  Any such Hazardous Material brought upon, kept, or used in, on or about the 
Premises shall be used, kept, stored, and disposed of in a manner that complies with all environmental 
laws and regulations applicable to Hazardous Material.  Lessee shall not cause or allow the release or 
discharge of any other materials or substances that are known to pose a hazard to the environment or 
human health. 
 

D.  Lessee’s Acceptance of Premises.  Lessee has inspected the Premises to its complete 
satisfaction and is familiar with its condition, and the City makes no representations or warranties with 
respect thereto, including but not limited to the condition of the Premises or its suitability or fitness for any 
use Lessee may make of the Premises.  Lessee accepts the Premises AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL 
FAULTS.  No action or inaction by the Council, the City Manager, or any other officer, agent or employee 
of the City relating to or in furtherance of the lease of the Premises shall be deemed to constitute an 
express or implied representation or warranty that the Premises, or any part thereof, is suitable or usable 
or any specific purpose whatsoever.  Any such action or inaction shall be deemed to be and constitute 
performance of a discretionary policy and planning function only, and shall be immune and give no right 
of action as provided in Alaska Statute §9.65.070, or any amendment thereto.   
 

E.  The City many terminate this Lease for any or no reason upon thirty (30) days’ written notice 
to Lessee. 

 
5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 
Lessee represents and warrants to the City that Lessee is not delinquent in the payment of any 

obligation to the City, and Lessee has not previously breached or defaulted in the performance of a 
material contractual or legal obligation to the City, which breach or default has not been remedied or 
cured. 

  
6. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLETTING; SUBORDINATION 

 
Lessee shall not assign or otherwise transfer this Lease or any interest herein or sublet the 

Premises or any portion thereof, or permit the occupancy of any part of the Premises by any other person 
or entity, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent the City may withhold in its absolute 
discretion.  The City shall not be required to subordinate this Lease or the City’s interest in the Premises 
to the interest of any other person or entity. 
 

7. OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE, UTILITIES, TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 
 

Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, be solely responsible for: (1) the maintenance 
and repair of the Premises and shall not commit or allow any waste upon the Premises; (2) obtaining any 
and all permits and approvals necessary for Lessee’s use of the Premises; (3) all utilities and services 
needed for Lessee’s use of the Premises; (4) all taxes and assessments levied against the Premises, and 
Lessee agrees to pay all such taxes and assessments as and when they become due, including but not 
limited to all utility bills and special assessments levied and unpaid as of the date of this Lease or 
hereafter levied for public improvements; (5) all licenses, excise fees, and occupation taxes with respect 
to the business and activities conducted on the Premises; (6) all real property taxes, personal property 
taxes, and sales taxes related to the Premises or Lessee’s use or occupancy thereof; and (7) any taxes 
on the leasehold interest created under this Lease.   
 

 

25



 
 
8. LIENS 

 
Lessee will suffer no lien or other encumbrance to attach to the Premises, including without 

limitation mechanic’s or materialman’s liens, sales tax liens under CMC §5.40.125, or property tax liens 
under CMC §5.36.260.  If the City posts any notice of non-responsibility on the Premises, Lessee will 
ensure that the notice is maintained in a conspicuous place. 
 

9. INDEMNIFICATION  
 

A. General Indemnification.  Lessee shall defend, indemnify and hold the City and its 
authorized representatives, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all 
actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other 
costs or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and 
consultant and expert fees) resulting from, arising out of, or related to Lessee’s occupation or use of the 
Premises or the occupation or use of the Premises by Lessee’s employees, agents, servants, customers, 
contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees or invitees, including but not limited to all claims and demands 
arising out of any labor performed, materials furnished, or obligations incurred in connection with any 
improvements, repairs, or alterations constructed or made on the Premises and the cost of defending 
against such claims, including reasonable attorney fees.  In the event that such a lien is recorded against 
the Premises, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense within ninety (90) days after being served with 
written notice thereof, protect the City against said lien by filing a lien release bond or causing the release 
of such lien. 
 

B. Environmental Indemnification.  Lessee has had full opportunity to examine the 
Premises for the presence of any Hazardous Material (as hereafter defined) and accepts the Premises 
AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS.  Lessee releases the City and its authorized representatives, 
agents, officers, and employees from any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, 
judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs or expenses (including, without limitation, 
attorney’s fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert fees) arising during or after the 
term of this Lease, that result from the use, keeping, storage, or disposal of Hazardous Material in, on or 
about the Premises by Lessee, or that arise out of or result from Lessee’s occupancy or use of the 
Premises or the use or occupancy of the Premises by Lessee’s employees, agents, servants, customers, 
contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees or authorized representatives.  This release includes, 
without limitation, any and all costs incurred due to any investigation of the Premises or any cleanup, 
removal, or restoration mandated by a federal, state, or local agency or political subdivision, or by law or 
regulation.  Lessee agrees that it shall be fully liable for all costs and expenses related to the use, 
storage, and disposal of Hazardous Material generated, kept or brought on the Premises by Lessee, its 
employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees or authorized 
representatives.  

 
Lessee shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City and its authorized representatives, agents, 

officers, and employees harmless from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, 
liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court 
costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert fees) of whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, 
contingent or otherwise, arising in whole or in part from or in any way related to (i) the presence, disposal, 
release, or threatened release of any such Hazardous Material which is on or from the Premises, soil, 
water, ground water, vegetation, buildings, personal property, persons, animals, or otherwise; (ii) any 
personal injury or property damage arising out of or related to such Hazardous Material; (iii) any lawsuit 
brought or threatened, settlement reached, or government order relating to such Hazardous Material; and 
(iv) any violation of any laws applicable to such Hazardous Material; provided, however, that the acts 
giving rise to the claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or 
expenses arise in whole or in part from the use of, operations on, or activities on the Premises by Lessee 
or its employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees, or 
authorized representatives.  

26



 
As used in this Lease, “Hazardous Material” means any substance which is toxic, ignitable, 

reactive, or corrosive or which is regulated by any federal, state or local law or regulation, as now in force 
or as may be amended from time to time, relating to the protection of human health or the environment, 
as well as any judgments, orders, injunctions, awards, decrees, covenants, conditions, or other 
restrictions or standards relating to the same.  “Hazardous Material” includes any and all material or 
substances that are defined as “hazardous waste,” “extremely hazardous waste,” or a “hazardous 
substance” under any such law or regulation. 
 

10.  INSURANCE 
 

Lessee shall procure and maintain, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, the following policies of 
insurance with a reputable insurance company or companies satisfactory to the City: 

(1) Commercial general liability insurance in respect of the Premises and the conduct of Lessee’s 
business and operations, naming the City as an additional insured, with minimum limits of liability of Ten 
Million dollars ($10,000,000.00) per accident or occurrence for bodily injury and death, and property 
damage for each occurrence;  

(2) Property insurance, insuring against loss or damage by fire and such other risks as are 
customarily included in the broad form of extended coverage, in an amount of coverage not less than the 
replacement value of the improvements on the Premises, if any, and on such terms as are satisfactory to 
the City;  

(3) Personal property insurance covering Lessee’s trade fixtures, furnishings, equipment, and 
other items of personal property of Lessee located on the Premises; and 

(4) Workers compensation insurance, and such other insurance as is required by law. 
All insurance required under this Lease shall contain an endorsement requiring thirty (30) days’ advance 
written notice to the City before cancellation or change in the coverage, scope, or amount of any policy.  
Prior to commencement of the Lease term, Lessee shall provide the City with proof of the insurance 
required by this Section 10. 
 

11.  REMOVAL OF PROPERTY 
 

Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, at the option of the City, Lessee shall remove 
from the Premises, at Lessee’s sole expense, all property Lessee has placed or caused to be placed on 
the Premises.  Lessee shall repair any damage to the Premises caused by such removal and return the 
Premises as near as possible to its original condition as existed on the Commencement Date.  All 
property which is not promptly removed by Lessee pursuant to the City’s request and in any event within 
thirty (30) days of the date of expiration or termination of this Lease may be removed, sold, destroyed or 
otherwise disposed of in any manner deemed appropriate by the City, all at Lessee’s sole expense, and 
Lessee hereby agrees to pay the City for such expenses.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary 
in this Lease, all petroleum, fuel, or chemical storage tanks installed in or on the Premises during the term 
of this Lease shall remain the property of the Lessee and, upon expiration or earlier termination of the 
Lease and upon request of the City, Lessee shall remove any and all such tanks and any and all 
contaminated soil and other materials from the Premises, all at Lessee's sole expense. 
 

12.  DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

A.  Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default and a breach of this 
Lease by the Lessee: 

 
(i) The failure to make payment when due of any installment of rent, Additional Charges or 

of any other sum herein specified to be paid by the Lessee; 
 
(ii) The failure to pay any taxes or assessments due from the Lessee to the City and in any 

way related to this Lease, the Premises, any improvements, or the Lessee’s activities or business 
conducted thereon, including but not limited to any real property, personal property or sales taxes; 

 

27



(iii) An assignment for the benefit of Lessee’s creditors or the filing of a voluntary or 
involuntary petition by or against Lessee under any law for the purpose of adjudicating Lessee a 
bankrupt, or for extending the time for payment, adjustment, or satisfaction of Lessee’s liabilities, or for 
reorganization, dissolution, or arrangement on account of or to prevent bankruptcy or insolvency, unless 
the assignment or proceeding, and all consequent orders, adjudications, custodies, and supervision are 
dismissed, vacated or otherwise permanently stated or terminated within thirty (30) days after the 
assignment, filing or other initial event; 

 
(iv) The appointment of a receiver or a debtor-in-possession to take possession of the 

Premises (or any portion thereof) or of Lessee’s interest in the leasehold estate (or any portion thereof) or 
of Lessee’s operations on the Premises (or any portion thereof) by reason of Lessee’s insolvency; 

 
(v)  The abandonment or vacation of the Premises or any portion thereof; 
 
(vi) Execution, levy or attachment on Lessee’s interest in this Lease or the Premises, or any 

portion thereof; 
 
(vii) The breach or violation of any statutes, laws, regulations, rules or ordinances of any kind 

applicable to Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; or 
 
(viii) The failure to observe or perform any covenant, promise, agreement, obligation or 

condition set forth in this Lease, other than the payment of rent, if such failure shall not be cured within 
ten (10) days after written notice has been given to Lessee.  Notices given under this subsection shall 
specify the alleged breach and the applicable Lease provision and demand that the Lessee perform 
according to the terms of the Lease.  No such notice shall be deemed a forfeiture or termination of this 
Lease unless the City expressly makes such election in the notice. 

 
B.  Remedies.  If the Lessee breaches any provision of this Lease, in addition to all other rights 

and remedies the City has at law or in equity, the City may do one or more of the following:  
 

(i) Distrain for rent due any of Lessee’s personal property which comes into the City’s 
possession.  This remedy shall include the right of the City to dispose of Lessee’s personal property in a 
commercially reasonable manner.  Lessee agrees that compliance with the procedures set forth in the 
Alaska Uniform Commercial Code with respect to the sale of property shall be a commercially reasonable 
disposal. 

 
(ii) Re-enter the Premises, take possession thereof, and remove all property from the 

Premises.  The property may be removed and stored at Lessee’s expense, all without service of notice or 
resort to legal process, which Lessee waives, and without the City becoming liable for any damage that 
may result unless the loss or damage is caused by the City’s negligence in the removal or storage of the 
property.  No re-entry by the City shall be deemed an acceptance of surrender of this Lease.  No 
provision of this Lease shall be construed as an assumption by the City of a duty to re-enter and re-let the 
Premises upon Lessee’s default.  If Lessee does not immediately surrender possession of the Premises 
after termination by the City and upon demand by the City, the City may forthwith enter into and upon and 
repossess the Premises and expel Lessee without being deemed guilty in any manner of trespass and 
without prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise be used for arrears of rent or breach of 
covenant; 
 

(iii) Declare this Lease terminated;  
 

(iv) Recover, whether this Lease is terminated or not, reasonable attorney’s fees and all other 
expenses incurred by the City by reason of the default or breach by Lessee;  
 

(v) Recover an amount to be due immediately upon breach equal to the sum of all rent, 
Additional Charges and other payments for which Lessee is obligated under the Lease;  
 

28



(vi) Recover the costs of performing any duty of Lessee in this Lease; 
 

(vii) Collect any and all rents due or to become due from subtenants or other occupants of the 
Premises. 
 

13. SUBSIDENCE 
 

The City shall not be responsible for any washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling or reliction to the 
Premises, nor for any injury caused thereby to the property of the Lessee or any sub-lessee, or that of 
any other person.  The City is not obligated to replace, refill, or improve any part of the Premises during 
Lessee's occupancy in the event of such washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling, or reliction. 

 
14. VACATION BY LESSEE  
 
Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, Lessee shall peaceably vacate the 

Premises and the Premises shall be returned to the City by Lessee together with any alterations, 
additions or improvements made after the Commencement Date, unless the City requests that they be 
removed from the Premises.  Upon such vacation, Lessee shall remove from the Premises any items of 
personal property brought on to the Premises.  Any such property not removed from the Premises within 
thirty (30) days of the expiration or termination of this Lease shall become the property of the City at no 
cost or charge to the City, and may be removed, sold, destroyed or otherwise disposed of in any manner 
deemed appropriate by the City, all at Lessee’s sole expense, and Lessee hereby agrees to pay the City 
for such expenses.   

 
15.  RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

 
The City reserves the right to designate and grant rights-of-way and utility easements across the 

Premises without compensation to Lessee or any other party, including the right of ingress and egress to 
and from the Premises for the construction, operation and maintenance of utilities and access, provided 
that Lessee shall be compensated for the taking or destruction of any improvements on the Premises.  
Lessee shall be responsible for requesting a rental adjustment to reflect any reduction in the value of the 
Premises.  
 

16.  SIGNS 
 

No signs or other advertising symbols, canopies, or awnings shall be attached to or painted on or 
within the Premises without approval of the City Manager first being obtained; provided, however, that this 
prohibition shall not apply to standard, directional, informational and identification signs of two square feet 
or less in size.  At the termination of this Lease, or sooner, all such signs, advertising matter, symbols, 
canopies or awnings, attached or painted by Lessee shall be removed from the Premises by Lessee at its 
own expense, and Lessee shall repair any damage or injury to the Premises, and correct any unsightly 
conditions caused by the maintenance or removal of said signs. 
 

17. HOLDING OVER 
 

If Lessee with the City’s written consent remains in possession of the Premises after the 
expiration or termination of the Lease term for any cause, or after the date in any notice given by the City 
to Lessee terminating this Lease, such holding over shall be deemed a tenancy from month to month at 
the same rental amount applicable immediately prior to such expiration or termination, subject to 
adjustment in accordance with CMC § 5.22.040(c) or such successor provision of the code then in effect, 
and shall be terminable on 30 days’ written notice given at any time by either party.  All other provisions of 
this Lease except those pertaining to term and rent shall apply to the month-to-month tenancy.  If Lessee 
holds over without the City’s express written consent, Lessee is deemed to be a tenant at sufferance and 
may be removed through a forcible entry and detainer proceeding without service on Lessee of a notice 
to quit.   

 

29



 
 

18. EMINENT DOMAIN 
 
If the whole or any part of the Premises shall be taken for any public or quasi-public use, under 

any statute or by right of eminent domain or private purchase in lieu thereof by a public body vested with 
the power of eminent domain, then the following provisions shall be operative. 
 

A.  Total Taking.  If the Premises are totally taken by condemnation, this Lease shall terminate. 
 

B. Partial Taking. If the Premises are partially taken by condemnation, then this Lease shall 
continue and the rent as specified in Section 3 above shall be abated in a proportion equal to the ratio 
that the portion of the Premises taken bears to the total Premises leased hereunder. 

 
C.  Award.  Upon condemnation, the parties shall share in the award to the extent that their 

interests, respectively, are depreciated, damaged, or destroyed by the condemnation. 
 
19. COSTS 
 
Lessee shall be liable to and shall pay the City for the fees and costs incurred by the City in 

connection with the preparation, operation and enforcement of this Lease.   
 
20. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A.  Time Is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Lease and of each provision hereof. 

 
B.  Entire Agreement.  This Lease represents the entire agreement between the parties with 

respect to the subject matter hereof, and may not be amended except in writing executed by the City and 
Lessee. 
 

C.  Governing Law and Venue.  This Lease shall be subject to the provisions of the Code now 
or hereafter in effect.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Alaska law and 
any action arising under this Lease shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Cordova, 
Alaska.   

 
D.  Relationship of Parties.  Nothing in this Lease shall be deemed or construed to create the 

relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of any association between 
Lessee and the City.  Neither the method of computation of rent, nor any other provisions contained in 
this Lease, nor any acts of the parties shall be deemed to create any relationship between the City and 
Lessee other than the relationship of lessee and lessor. 
 

E.  Notice.  All notices hereunder may be hand-delivered or mailed.  If mailed, they shall be sent 
by certified or registered mail to the following respective addresses: 

 
TO CITY:     TO LESSEE: 

 
City of Cordova    Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc. 
Attn: City Manager    Attn: Ric & Osa Schultz 
P.O. Box 1210     P.O. Box 1291 
Cordova, Alaska 99574    Cordova, AK 99574 

 
or to such other respective addresses as either party hereto may hereafter from time to time designate in 
advance in writing to the other party.  Notices sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given when 
properly mailed, and the postmark affixed by the U.S. Post Office shall be conclusive evidence of the date 
of mailing. If hand-delivered, notice shall be deemed to have been made at the time of delivery. 

 

30



F.  Captions.  Captions herein are for convenience and reference and shall not be used in 
construing the provisions of this Lease. 
 

G.  No Waiver of Breach.  No failure by the City to insist upon the strict performance of any term, 
covenant or condition of this Lease, or to exercise any right or remedy upon a breach thereof, shall 
constitute a waiver of any such breach or of such term, covenant or condition.  No waiver of any breach 
shall effect or alter this Lease, but each and every term, covenant and condition of this Lease shall 
continue in full force and effect with respect to any other existing or subsequent breach. 
 

H.  Survival.  No expiration or termination of this Lease shall expire or terminate any liability or 
obligation to perform which arose prior to the termination or expiration. 
 

I.  Late Payment.  In the event that any rent or other payment due under this Lease is not 
received by the City when due, a late fee of five percent (5%) per month of the principal amount due shall 
be due and payable until the full amount of rent or other payment is received by the City. 
 

J.  Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Lease is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and 
shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated. 
 

K.  Successors and Assigns.  The terms, covenants and conditions in this Lease shall inure to 
the benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the City and Lessee. 

 
L.  Estoppel Certificates.  Either party shall at any time and from time to time, upon not less 

than 10 days’ prior written request by the other party, execute, acknowledge, and deliver to such party a 
statement certifying that this Lease is unamended and in full force and effect (or, if there has been any 
amendment, that the same is in full force and effect as amended and stating the amendments); that there 
are no defaults existing (or, if there is any claimed default, stating the nature and extent thereof); and 
stating the dates to which the rent and other charges have been paid in advance. 
 

M.  Recordation of Lease.  The parties agree that this Lease shall not be recorded, but upon the 
request of either party, the other party will join the requesting party in executing a memorandum of lease 
in a form suitable for recording, and each party agrees that such memorandum shall be prepared and 
recorded at the requesting party’s expense. 
 

N.  Authority.  Lessee represents that Lessee is a for-profit corporation duly organized, validly 
existing, and in good standing under the laws of the State of Washington, and is duly authorized by the 
State of Alaska to do business as a foreign corporation in the State of Alaska, and that Lessee has all 
necessary power and is duly authorized to enter into this Lease and to carry out the obligations of Lessee 
hereunder.  Prior to executing this Lease, Lessee shall provide the City with a certificate of authority 
issued by the State of Alaska, and shall provide the City with a resolution of Lessee’s Board of Directors 
authorizing Lessee to enter into this Lease and to carry out its obligations hereunder as set forth above, 
and authorizing and directing the officer of Lessee whose name and signature appear at the end of this 
Lease to execute this Lease on Lessee’s behalf.   

 
O.  Exhibits.  Exhibit A to this Lease is hereby specifically incorporated into this Lease. 
 
P.  No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Lease shall be interpreted or construed to 

create any rights or benefits to any parties not signatories or successors or permitted assigns of 
signatories to this Lease. 

 
Q.  Interpretation.  The language in all parts of this Lease shall in all cases be simply construed 

according to its fair meaning and not for or against the City or Lessee as both City and Lessee have had 
the assistance of attorneys in drafting and reviewing this Lease. 
 

R.  Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so 

31



executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument.  

 
S. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event that the City shall bring any suit or action to enforce this 

Lease or any term or provision hereof, and shall prevail in such suit or action, Lessee agrees that Lessee 
shall pay the City’s attorney’s fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with such suit or action. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease to be executed on the dates set 

opposite their respective signatures below. 
 
 

CITY:     CITY OF CORDOVA 
 
 

Dated:    By:       
 

Its:  City Manager 
 
 

Attest: _________________________ 
City Clerk 

 
 
  
 
 
 

LESSEE:    _______________________________ 
 
 
 

Dated:     By:       
             

Its:       

32



33



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Me mo  to  City Co unc il        
Re : Co rdo va  Ce nte r Budg e t Phase  II      Fe bruary  27, 2013 
 
Be fo re  yo u is the  Co rdo va  Ce nte r Phase  II budg e t in the  amo unt o f $12,321,517 
millio n (Twe lve  millio n, thre e  hundre d twe nty-o ne  tho usand, five  hundre d and 
se ve nte e n do llars.)  Antic ipate d funds are  as fo llo ws:  
 
GOVERNMENT green is secured funding 
      Federal 

 EVOSTC        $ 7,000,000 
  Congressional Appropriations -- secured  $ 2,488,100 
 EVOSTC       $ 1,300,000 
 IMLS ( Museum, exhibit design, etc.)   $    150,000 
 National Endowment for the Humanities    $    400,000 

    Federal secured total  $ 9,488,100 
    Federal potential total  $ 1,850,000 
State 

 Legislative Appropriations – secured   $ 5,525,000 
 Governor Discretionary Funds -- secured  $ 1,000,000 
 Grants-in-Aid (State Museum)    $      10,000 
 Legislative Appropriation      $ 4,000,000 

    State secured total   $ 6,525,000 
    State potential total  $ 4,010,000     
Municipal 

 City—Land Acquisition     $    362,000 
 City—Funding       $ 1,500,000 
 City—Match to EDA      $      85,000 
 City – In-Kind to Date     $    475,000 

  Municipal secured total less in-kind            $ 1,947,000 
 
FOUNDATIONS 

 Rasmuson Foundation     $ 1,000,000 
 Murdock Charitable Trust     $    350,000 
 Paul G. Allen Foundations     $      40,000 
 Gates Foundation      $      50,000 
 Annenberg Foundation     $    100,000 
 Others       $      30,000  

     Total Foundations  $ 1,570,000 
 
 

CITY	OF	CORDOVA	
Office	of	City	Manager

 

34



 
 

 
 

CORPORATIONS 
 Corporations—local, regional and state   $ 650,000 

     Total Corporate  $ 650,000 
 
LOCAL FUNDRAISING --  

 Local businesses  $   50,000 
 Boards and staffs of partner nonprofits   $   15,000 
 Individual donors       $   75,000 

o Secured      $     9,823 
 Fundraising events and items for sale   $   25,000 

o Secured      $   13,289 
 In-kind donations      $ 175,000 

Local Secured Total  $   23,112 
     Total Local less In-kind $ 165,000 

 
RECAP 

 Municipal 
  Secured funding     $  1,947,000    

 Federal & State       
  Secured funding     $16,013,100 
  Potential sources     $  5,860,000 
 Foundations       $  1,570,000 
 Corporate       $     650,000 
 Local donations/fundraisers 
  Secured funding     $       23,112 
  Projected      $     165,000 
 In-kind donations      $     175,000 

 
       
   TOTAL Secured     $ 17,983,212 

TOTAL Projected (Less In-Kind)  $   8,245,000    
 

Recommended action: Vo ic e  Vo te .  

I mo ve  to  appro ve  Re so lutio n 03-13-10 

 
 
Do na ld  Mo o re  
City Manag e r 
 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

35



DRAFT 
 

 
Resolution 03-13-10 
Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 03-13-10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
ADOPTING A CORDOVA CENTER PHASE II PROJECT BUDGET  

 AS SUMMARIZED PURSUANT TO THE FOLLOWING TABLE. 
. 

Phase II    

426-402-70110 Project Administration $187,600.00 

426-402--70130 Construction  

 Phase 2A $1,848,566.00 

 Phase 2B $2,438,857.00 

 Phase 2C $4,226,115.00 

 Phase 2D $866,479.00 

426-402-70140 Project Consultation and Management $187,600.00 

426-402-70150  Administrative Contingency $375,300.00 

426-402-70160 Furnishings $375,300.00 

426-402-70170 Legal $140,700.00 

426-402-70180 1% for Art $250,000.00 

426-402-70190 Design/Landscape/SW Stair $75,000.00 

426-402-70200 Museum Exhibit Design/Installation $500,000.00 

426-402-70210 Museum Collections Storage $200,000.00 

426-402-70220 Theater Extras $350,000.00 

426-402-70230 Emergency Generator $250,000.00 

426-402-70240 Fuel Tank $25,000.00 

426-402-70250 Security Cameras $25,000.00 

  $12,321,517.00 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager submitted his proposed FY13 Operating Budget; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the Cordova Center Phase II Project Budget was not complete at that time 
and City Council has conducted a work session reviewing the proposed Cordova Center project 
budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the capital campaign for the Cordova Center Project Phase II is currently 
and continually underway;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, hereby adopts the Cordova Center Phase II Project Budget and  
 

36



DRAFT 
 

 
Resolution 03-13-10 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all Phases of the Cordova Center Project Phase II 
will be brought forward to City Council for approval of appropriation before proceeding.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6th DAY OF MARCH, 2013. 
 
 

        
       ____________________________________ 
       James Kallander, Mayor 
 
      ATTEST:   
      
       ____________________________________ 

      Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



Memorandum 
To:  Mayor and City Council 

Through:  Donald L. Moore, Interim City Manager  

From:  Anthony J Schinella, Harbormaster 

Date:  February 27, 2013 

Re:  North Fill boat launch use plan, including Lot 3A       

  

PART I. GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
The timeline of the disposal of Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park 
 

1. 07/10/2012 P&Z meeting –Planning and Zoning referred back to staff and Harbor 
Commission to determine if the lot was available for disposal. 

 
2. 09/17/2012 Harbor Commission Meeting met and recommend that Lot 3A, Block 

8, North Fill Development Park remain as unavailable. 
 

3. 10/09/2012 P&Z recommend that Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park     
remain unavailable 

 
4. 11/17/2012 City Council Meeting Council referred back to Harbor Commission to 

develop a use plan for the city property near the North fill boat launch including 
Lot 3A. 

 
5. 01/09/13 Harbor Commission Regular Meeting. HC discussed new ideas 

approved a rough draft of the North Ramp use plan to include Lot 3A, block 8. 
6. 02/13/13 Harbor Commission Regular Meeting. HC approved final draft of North 

Fill boat launch use plan to include Lot 3A, Block 8. 
       

7. 2/20/2012 the use plan was brought up and discussed in Commissioner reports. 
Council clarified that the land use plan was to help decide on the land disposal 
request for Lot 3A and should be an agenda item.  

 
 
At this time I am attaching a drawing of the use plan that was approved by the Harbor 
Commission on 02/13/13. I respectfully request City Council review the North Fill boat 
launch use plan and determine the status of Lot 3A Block 8 North Fill Development Park.   
 

38



39



Memorandum 

To: Mayor and City Council 

Through: Donald L. Moore, Interim City Manager  

From: Samantha Greenwood, City Planner 

Date: February 25, 2013 

Re: Lot 3A land disposal recommendation      

  

PART I. GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
The timeline of the disposal of Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park 
 

1. 07/10/2012 P&Z meeting –Planning and Zoning referred back to staff and Harbor 
Commission to determine if the lot was available for disposal. 

 
2. 09/17/2012 Harbor Commission Meeting met and recommend that Lot 3A, Block 

8, North Fill Development Park remind as unavailable 
 

3. 10/09/2012 P&Z recommend that Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park     
remain unavailable 

 
4. 11/07/2012 City Council Meeting Council referred back to Harbor Commission to 

develop a use plan for the city property near the North fill boat launch including 
Lot 3A. 

 
5. 2/20/2012 the use plan was brought up and discussed in Commissioner reports. 

Council clarified that the land use plan was to help decided on the land disposal 
request for Lot 3A and should be an agenda item.  
 

As City Council considers the choice of making this lot available or not available staff 
would like to provide these additional points.  
 

1. Adding an additional 20 feet from the city Lot 4 to Lot 3A provides the additional 
square footage and width to meet the zoning requirements for this area thus 
making it available to everyone.  

2. Or Eliminating the substandard lot could also be accomplished by merging the lot 
lines of lot 3A and the adjoining city lot  

3.  “if the remnant parcel were attached to the adjacent property and returned income 
to the City at the same rate ($ per sq.ft.) as the adjacent parcel, the gross annual 
revenue to the City would be approximately $3600.” 
 

40



At this time I am attaching the original memo that I forwarded to City Council on 
11/07/2012 and ask that City Council review and determine the status of Lot 3A Block 8 
North Fill Development Park.   
 

41



Memorandum 

To: City Council 

Thru: Samantha Greenwood, City Planner 

Date: October 10, 2012  

Re: Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park                                              

  

PART I.   GENERAL INFORMATION: 

The timeline of the disposal of Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park                                              
 

1. 07/10/2012 P&Z meeting –Planning and Zoning referred back to staff and Harbor 
Commission to determine if the lot was available for disposal. 

2. 09/17/2012 Harbor Commission Meeting met and recommend that  Lot 3A, Block 8, 
North Fill Development Park remind as unavailable   

3. 10/09/2012 P&Z meet and recommend that  of Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development 
Park remain unavailable 

 
A letter of interest was received by the City Manager and brought forward at the July 10, 2012 
Planning Commission meeting for Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park, which is 
currently identified as unavailable on the land disposal maps. The Planning Commission referred 
the item back to staff pending input from the Harbor Commission identifying if the lot was 
available for disposal. 
  
Harbor Commission 
 
At the September 17, 2012 Harbor Commission Meeting the Commission voted unanimously 
against recommending to the Planning Commission to dispose of Lot 3A, Block 8,  
North Fill Development Park giving the following reasons: 
 
1. Last winter the Harbor Commission voted to turn this lot and part of the adjoining land 
into a boat maintenance area, similar to the space available behind the Harbor Master building. 
Water and electrical services were in the process of being installed when the letter of interest was 
received and put the improvements on hold.  It is the Harbor Commission’s desire to complete 
their original plan. 

2. The Harbor Commission believes the trailer traffic at the three stage dock to be excessive 
and potentially dangerous. By developing this lot they hope to shift part of that traffic to the 
North Fill launch ramp and provide a safer situation for the community.  
 
3. The North Fill launch ramp float system has been funded and is in the process of being 
built. When this facility is in place there will be a need for more trailer parking and support 
facilities in this area. The Harbor Commission hopes that this lot will provide the services 
necessary so that the trailer traffic throughout town will be minimized.  

42



 2

4. The adjacent land is currently being used to store SERVS barges and as boat storage. Due 
to the excessive snow last winter and subsequent structural damage to several warehouses, there 
has been an increased demand on boat storage. This lot provides a needed service to our fleet and 
collects revenue for the Harbor.  
 
5. The Harbor Commission sees itself foremost as an advocate for the Harbor and its future 
development. The Harbor has minimal land at its disposal for future development and the 
Commission feels losing any land at this point would be a detriment to the Harbor. 
 
Planning Commission 
 
At the October 9, 2012 Planning and Zoning the Commission concurred with the Harbor 
Commissions recommendation of not disposing of  Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development 
Park and recommended that Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park remain not available 
on the land disposal maps.  
 

 
 
PART II. STAFF SUGGESTED MOTION: 
“I move to agree with the Harbor Commission and Planning and Zoning recommendation to leave to 
Lot 3A, Block 8, North Fill Development Park as not available on the Land disposal maps.” 

 

43



44



45



46



47



48



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Fe b rua ry 27, 2013 
Me mo  to  City Co unc il 
Re : Da wso n Co nstruc tio n Co rdo va  Ce nte r Pha se  II Co ntra c t 
 
CMC 5.12.040 “Counc il approval of c ontrac ts” says: 

No  c o ntrac t fo r supplie s, se rvic e s o r c o nstruc tio n whic h o b lig ate s the  c ity to  pay 

mo re  than fifte e n tho usand do llars may be  e xe c ute d unle ss the  c o unc il has 

appro ve d a me mo randum se tting  fo rth the  fo llo wing  e sse ntial te rms o f the  

c o ntrac t: 

A.   The  ide ntity o f the  c o ntrac to r; 

B.   The  c o ntrac t pric e ; 

C.   The  nature  and quantity o f the  pe rfo rmanc e  that the  c ity shall re c e ive  unde r 

the  c o ntrac t; and 

D.   The  time  fo r pe rfo rmanc e  unde r the  c o ntrac t. 

 
I re c o mme nd the  c ity e nte r into  a  c o ntra c t with Da wso n Co nstruc tio n, 

Be lling ha m, Wa shing to n to  c o mple te  c o nstruc tio n o f the  Co rdo va  Ce nte r, 

Pha se  II 2A. 

 

The  c o ntra c t pric e  is no t to  e xc e e d  a  sum o f One  Millio n, Eig ht Hundre d  Fo rty 

Eig ht Tho usa nd, a nd  Five  Hundre d  a nd  Sixty Six Do lla rs. ($1,848,566).  

 

A summa ry o f the  na ture  a nd  q ua ntity o f the  pe rfo rma nc e  the  c ity sha ll re c e ive  

is se t fo rth in the  a tta c he d  c o ntra c t (Exhib it A). 

 

Recommended action: Vo ic e  Vo te .  

I mo ve  to  d ire c t the  City Ma na g e r to  e nte r into  a  c o ntra c t with Da wso n 

Co nstruc tio n to  c o mple te  Pha se  II 2A c o nstruc tio n fo r a  sum o f One  Millio n, Eig ht 

Hundre d  Fo rty Eig ht Tho usa nd, a nd  Five  Hundre d  a nd  Sixty Six Do lla rs. 

($1,848,566). 

 
 
Do na ld  Mo o re  
City Ma na g e r 
 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



Cordova Center – Phase II  11/9/12 

DCI Project No. 12068 SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS 

Dawson Construction, Inc. (DCI) Page 1 of 3 

 

P:\DJC Projects\2011103 Cordova Center Consulting\Phase 2\CMGC Contract\Final\SCG - Owner 11 09 12  - OAC Edits 2013 0111.docx  Revised: 10/30/12 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS  

 

1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 These Supplementary General Conditions make additions, deletions, or revisions to the General Conditions as indicated 

herein. 

 These Supplemental General Conditions will supplement the drawings & specifications.  Terms used in these 

Supplementary General Conditions which are defined in the General Conditions have the meanings assigned to them in 

the General Conditions. 

 These Supplemental General Conditions will supersede the Subcontract General Conditions. 

 Facsimile or e-mail transmission of any signed original document and retransmission of any signed facsimile or e-mail 

transmission shall be the same as delivery of an original document. 

2. OWNER 

 Owner to provide information so that the Contractor can confirm the funding for the project has been secured. 

 Owner to disclose all accounting and/or audit requirements. 

  

 Disadvantage Business requirements are not part of this project.  Costs are not included. 

 Native Preference requirements not part of this project.  Costs are not included. 

 TERO requirements not part of this project.  Costs are not included. 

 Buy America requirements not part of this project.  Costs are not included. 

 Buy American requirements not part of this project.  Costs are not included. 

  Permits & Fees 

 All permits, including plan check fees will be provided by Owner. 

  Utilities 

 Owner shall pay all utility connection fees including all private & public utilities including the costs of meters. 

  Inspection & Testing 

 Special Inspection and testing costs are By Owner. 

  Contingency 

 We expect the Owner to carry the contingency in soft costs to cover unforeseen conditions. 

  Unforeseen Conditions 

 When discovered, Contractor will notify Owner and present cost proposal. 

3. GENERAL CONTRACTOR AND/OR CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 

 Upon request Contractor will submit a summary accounting report of actual project costs – see A201 for additional 

requirements 

 Self Performed Work – the Contractor may self-perform up to twenty-five (25) percent of the work in any single Contract 

phase under this agreement; as long as the total value of Self performed Work does not exceed forty (40) percent of the 

total GMP for all Contract phases of work included in the contract. The Contractor will notify the OWNER in writing of any 

Contract Work it proposes to self-perform and submit a Cost Proposal for performing the work. The Contractor’s cost 

proposal for Self performed Work shall not include the Contractor’s Fixed Fee. Self performed Work is to be included in 

the GMP as part of the Negotiated Cost of the Work.  It will be reimbursed and treated as a subcontract except when 

otherwise specified in this Contract. The Owner may accept the Contractor’s proposal to self-perform work; negotiate a 

124



Cordova Center – Phase II  11/9/12 

DCI Project No. 12068 SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS 

Dawson Construction, Inc. (DCI) Page 2 of 3 

 

P:\DJC Projects\2011103 Cordova Center Consulting\Phase 2\CMGC Contract\Final\SCG - Owner 11 09 12  - OAC Edits 2013 0111.docx  Revised: 10/30/12 

 

price acceptable to both parties for performing the work; or require the Contractor to Subcontract the work to others. 

 Labor & Materials 

 Wages or salaries of the Contractor’s personnel stationed at the Contractor’s principal or other offices shall be included in 

the Specified General Conditions, subject to Owner’s Approval with each GMP submission, and will be charges as follows: 

  

Classification Hourly Rate Monthly Rate 

Sr. Project Manager $90.00 $15,800 

Project Manager $80.00 $14,000 

Asst. Project Manager $70.00 $12,300 

Project Engineer $70.00 $12,300 

Office Contract Administrator $45.00 $7,900 

On-Site Contract Administrator $45.00 $7,900 

Safety Officer $90.00 $15,800 

On-Site Safety Officer $65.00 $11,400 

Quality Control Manager $90.00 $15,800 

On-Site Quality Control 

Representative 
$65.00 $11,400 

 

 
Contractor is required to file a Notice of Work and Notice of Completion with the Alaska Department of Labor.  The filing 

fee is  included in our contract price. 

 AS 36.10 – Preferential Employment – All subcontractors shall comply with all applicable and valid laws and regulations 

regarding the hiring of Alaska residents now in effect o that might subsequently take effect during the term of this 

Contract.   

 Native hiring and reporting is not included. 

 Schedule 

 Contractor assumes exterior work that is weather related can be done at the appropriate time of year. 

 . (see A201) 

 (see A201) 

  (see A201) 

 Safety & Security 

 The construction site will be fenced but no additional security (cameras, night watch, and automated alarm systems) has 

been included. 

4. SUBCONTRACTOR 

  (see A201) 

5. CHANGES IN WORK 

  

  (see A201) 

  

125



Cordova Center – Phase II  11/9/12 

DCI Project No. 12068 SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL CONDITIONS 

Dawson Construction, Inc. (DCI) Page 3 of 3 

 

P:\DJC Projects\2011103 Cordova Center Consulting\Phase 2\CMGC Contract\Final\SCG - Owner 11 09 12  - OAC Edits 2013 0111.docx  Revised: 10/30/12 

 

6. TIME 

 Bid amount assumes a Notice to Proceed date of TBD. 

 Substantial Completion is TBD or TBD from Notice to Proceed. 

 The Contractor shall pay Owner $1,000/calendar day liquidated damages if work is not substantially complete by the 

dates above – Subject to any adjustments to the contract time allowed by the contract documents. 

7. PAYMENTS & COMPLETION 

  

  

  

  

  (see A133 and A201) 

8. PROTECTION OF PERSON & PROPERTY 

 Hazardous Substance Abatement and/or Remediation 

  Costs have not been included for hazardous material (including lead paint) remediation. 

9. INSURANCE & BONDS 

 Payment and Performance Bond are required for this project, costs will be included in the GMP 

 General Liability & Auto insurance are required for this project; costs will be included in the GMP. 

 Property Insurance (Builders Risk) is required for this project, costs will be included in the GMP.  Builders Risk Insurance 

will be applicable only on the building during construction. 

10. UNCOVERING & CORRECTION OF WORK 

 Any findings or conditions that are uncovered from previous Contractor’s work will be dealt with through the Change 

Order process. 

11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 Sustainable Building 

  LEED certification program is part of our costs. 

 Code Requirements 

  Responsibility for all accessibility requirements, including architectural and civil, rests with the project architect. 

 Closeout 

  The project will be substantially complete on the date when the Owner is able to use the building.  At this time the 

Owner assumes Builders Risk Insurance and utilities are transferred to the Owner. 

   One (1) electronic copy & one (1) hard copy of the O&M manual will be provided. 

By signing below, Contractor & Owner acknowledgement that they have read agree to the above Supplemental 

Conditions.   

 

By Dawson Construction, Inc.  By  

    Owner 

By   By  

 Contractor ( Authorized Signature)   Owner (Authorized Signature) 

 Michael Bayless, Secretary    

 Contractor ( Printed Name)   Owner (Printed Name) 

 

126



  

 
 
   

opportunities will enhance Cordova’s status 
as a desirable place to live and raise a family, 
attracting new residents who will also 
stimulate the economy.  
    The City of Cordova serves the entire 
population of Cordova (2,454) including its 
federally recognized Native Tribe (The 
Native Village of Eyak), visitors from 
Alaska, elsewhere in the U.S. and abroad. 
Visitors to Cordova include independent 
travelers arriving on tour ships, the fast ferry 
and 

   The community of Cordova is constructing 
a 33,929 square foot fully ADA accessible 
facility called the Cordova Center that will 
include museum, library, performing arts 
theatre/auditorium, meeting rooms, education 
areas, administrative offices and associated 
work space. This project is founded in the 
collaboration of the City with the Cordova 
Historical Society, United States Forest 
Service, Stage of the Tides, Arts and 
Pageants, Friends of the Library, the Cordova 
School District, Native Village of Eyak, 
Prince William Sound Community College, 
Prince William Sound Science Center, Exxon 
Valdez Oil Spill Trustee Council, service 
groups, civic groups and the community.  

PROJECT GOALS 

CORDOVA CENTER PROJECT  
BUSINESS PLAN  

   The Cordova Center project addresses goals 

stated in the Cordova Community Tourism 

Plan as well as the City of Cordova’s 
Comprehensive Development Plan. Building 

a facility that serves local residents and 

provides an attraction for businesses as well 

as seasonal visitors is an important 

contribution to stable and sustainable 

economic growth. The increase in services, 

 Create a community center in the heart of the town 
 Link the waterfront district and business district 

through a series of covered walkways.  
 Build a state of the art, energy efficient facility, 

minimizing operating costs for the combined 
facilities  

 Provide ADA accessibility to all government 
services in the facility  

 Provide an environmentally controlled space for 
museum displays, traveling exhibits and storage, 
thereby allowing the museum to pursue 
accreditation  

 Develop a warm inviting environment for the 
delivery of library services  

 Provide municipal administration office and 
meeting space  

 Provide a performing arts/film theatre to be used as 
a small conference venue  

 Meet civic needs for meetings, conventions and 
receptions  

 Improve educational opportunities by offering 
space for science education, workshops, classes 
and programs for residents of all ages  

 Support and strengthen local art programs, 
promotion and display of contemporary Alaskan 
art.  

 Revitalize the economy through the diverse 
opportunities provided by the Center  

2. Site Plan  5’ 10’  25’  

This document is printed on eco-friendly paper certified by the Forest Stewardship Council  

 

127



 

airlines. The Iceworm Festival, Shorebird 
Festival, First Fish and Copper River Wild 
Salmon Celebrations attract approximately 
1500 attendees each year. Sport fishermen 
flood the community in mid-August to mid-
September, during the silver salmon sport 
fishing season, adding another 200-300 
visitors. The area attracts heli-skiiers totaling 
30 - 40 outdoor recreationists who spend a 
week to ten days each in the community 
during February, March, and April to enjoy 
this sport.  

    Cordova is a rural community accessible 
only by air or water. Regular jet air service is 
provided by Alaska Airlines and ERA. The 
Alaska Marine Highway ferry system 
provides marine access. Regular ferry service 
provides access for passengers, vehicles and 
freight. The addition of the fast ferry M/V 
Chenega has improved access to the 
community by shortening travel time and 
increasing availability of ferry service, 
thereby improving economic development 
potential.  
   Currently the City utilizes two buildings to 
house its various offices and departments. 
Neither of these facilities is energy efficient 
or large enough to provide space for the 
growing programs housed in it. The Cordova 
Historical Museum displays exhibits that 
bring to life the history of the community. 
Museum staff works closely with the school 
district to organize K-6 class visits to share 
the community’s story with children once a 
month from September through May. 
Museum attendance reached a high of 13,268 
visitors in 2006 and has continued to  

average over 10,000 each year since. The 
Cordova Public Library provides services to 
patrons from the community and surrounding 
areas, from Icy Bay to hatcheries in remote 
parts of Prince William Sound. The library 
provides supplemental services to the 
elementary school library for 200 pre-
kindergarten to sixth grade children. Annual 
library attendance has increased from 15,447 

in 2000 to 26,008 in 2011. 

COMMUNITY NEEDS  
The Cordova Center meets three different 

categories of identified community need:  

1. Efficient and cost-effective delivery of 
municipal services Current facilities in 
Cordova for museum, library, municipal 
offices, performing arts, visitor center 
services, after-school and science education 
programs are inefficient and inadequate, 
resulting in high maintenance and operations 
costs and unsafe working conditions or non-
compliance with building and safety codes in 
some cases. None of the facilities meet ADA 
standards, thereby limiting access to disabled 
members of the public. There is no safe 
pedestrian link between the city’s two 
commercial areas.  

2. Economic diversification in the community 
for sustainability Cordova’s dependence on 
commercial fishing has resulted in an 
economy that is cyclical in nature and not 
diverse. This reliance on one industry has led 
to economic difficulties as fluctuations occur 
in fishing and fishing related ventures. In 
addition to the natural cycles, the community 
of Cordova was heavily impacted by the 
devastating effects of the 1989 Exxon Valdez 
oil spill to the economy. The community 
recognizes a need for economic 
diversification to promote long-term 
sustainability.  

3. Opportunities for future economic growth 
both locally and regionally The community 
does not have convention and meeting venue 
space to accommodate the current demands 
from businesses, government agencies and 
non-profit associations. There is no space to 
address the anticipated growth in demand for 
conference facilities as the community 
expands its market share of conventions, 
symposiums and small meetings.  

128



 The firm of Minch Ritter Voelckers, Inc. 
was retained as project architects in February 
2002.The Cordova Center site was purchased 
by the City for $140,000 in February, 2005. 
The facility will be registered and will seek 
Gold Certification status with the U.S. Green 
Building Council through the Leadership in 
Energy and Environmental Design rating 
system. Energy efficient design will result in 
lower operation and maintenance costs, 
helping to assure sustainability.  

Total project costs are estimated at 
$25,500,000. A public/ private funding 
strategy has been developed for the capital 
campaign. Primary funding has come from 
federal and state appropriations, government 
agencies, foundations and corporations. Local 
contributions are also demonstrating project 
support. To date $17,983,212 has been secured 
from a variety of sources for the Center.  
     The project has been divided into two 
Phases. Phase I completed in 2012 involved 
the civil work and construction of the exterior 
shell of the facility complete with all exterior 
finishes, doors and windows.  Phase II 
scheduled to begin in 2013 will focus on 
interior mechanical and electrical services as 
well as final finishes, framing and lighting.  

The construction of the Cordova Center is 
being overseen by the City of Cordova’s 
Project Manager and the City Council. A 
Project Manager has been hired to oversee 
construction of the facility on behalf of the 
City of Cordova. During its construction 
phases, the project has and will continue to 
have a significant economic impact on the 
local community – creating construction jobs 
and all the ancillary economic benefits of a 
major project to the community that is 
housing and supplying the work force.  

The Cordova City Council will provide for 
management of the Cordova Center through 
an appointed Cordova Center Advisory 
Committee, comprised of seven community 
members, including representatives from the 

   The City of Cordova will own, operate and 
manage the Cordova Center. Designed to have a 
long, useful life, the facility will keep operation 
costs as low as possible by using passive energy 
sources, conserving water and energy and 
utilizing extremely efficient utility systems. 
Fuel efficiency, timed light controls, low water 
toilets, use of ambient light and high R value 
insulation will provide savings. Construction 
materials will be selected with long life cycles 
and low maintenance in mind. Reduction of 
duplication of services and administrative costs 
will improve efficiency and minimize expenses. 
Cost savings will be achieved through use  

library, museum, city administration, the Prince 
William Sound Science Center, Chamber of 
Commerce, Stage of the Tides and the 
community at large. Guided by their bylaws, the 
group will work closely with the City Manager 
and Facility Manager to develop and oversee 
use policies, fee schedules and security issues. 
Including the various stakeholders on the 
committee allows for community concerns 
regarding costs and rules for use to be addressed 
by those who are aware of each user group’s 
needs and ability to pay for services.  
   The City Council has final authority over the 
recommended policies and fees. The operation 
and maintenance of the facility will be the 
responsibility of the City Manager working 
closely with the Assistant City Manager, 
Information Services Department, Facility 
Manager and Director of Public Works to assure 
that marketing, scheduling, maintenance and 
janitorial duties are carried out in a timely and 
efficient manner. The City anticipates adding a 
part-time Marketing Director, part time meeting 
coordinator, full time Facility Manager and full 
time janitorial to be responsible for the 
operations of the Cordova Center.  
   Sustainability is a major planning component 
for the Cordova center focusing on the key areas 
to ensure that the facility is efficient to operate 
and maintain over the long-term.  

129



 

 

SUSTAINABILITY 
 Green building design with energy efficient systems  
 Selection of systems and materials with long life-

cycles and low maintenance costs  
 Reduced overhead expenditures (multiple functions 

sharing one set of systems)  
 Shared services, equipment, network access and 

other administrative costs  
 Personnel sharing across programs  
 Earned income stream from conference/ meeting 

use of facility  
 Lease fees from Science Discovery Program and 

kiosk space  
 Revenues from current and newly developed 

festivals  
 Affordable fees for local use of performing arts and 

other spaces for public events  
 Rental fees for private use of the facility for 

weddings, receptions and other celebrations 

of shared equipment, technology networks, 
phone systems, supplies and contract 
services. Operations and maintenance (O 
&M) costs for the new facility will be 
provided by combining O&M budgets for 
administrative offices, library and museum 
with income generated from the use of the 
civic center, theatre and leased space.  

   Using the project pro forma developed by 
Alaska Engineering & Energy Consultants, 
projected annual O &M costs for the Center 
three years after occupation are $132,600, as 
opposed to about $88,000 for current 
buildings extrapolated to the same year.   

   The various earned income streams will be 
based on a competitive fee schedule for 
conference planners and a sliding fee schedule 
for local residents, assuring local affordability 
and high municipal support and use. An 
aggressive and active marketing campaign will 
be undertaken to build Cordova’s reputation as 
an attractive, accessible and accommodating 
conference destination. Successful conferences 
will result in satisfied attendees who will assist 
in building Cordova’s market by sharing their 
experiences with others. This will enable the 
community to attract a growing piece of 
Alaska’s convention market. In addition, due 
to the vast array of outdoor opportunities 
available  

   Adding the Facility Manager, maintenance 
and custodial salaries brings the annual new 
building cost to $257,000, about $169,000 
more than current costs. This is offset by the 
projected $133,800 in annual revenue the 
new facility will generate, leaving only 
$35,200 in extra annual costs to the city for a 
new building almost five times the size of 
combined spaces currently occupied by city 
services that will be housed in the new 
Center. This amount can be balanced by 
potential city income from leasing or selling 
the building that will be vacated when the 
library and museum move. In addition, the 
city will gain economic benefits from the 
conference market the Center will access, 
bringing in increased sales tax, lodging tax 
and car rental tax (all set at 6%) to the city 
coffers.  

 

130



in the area  attendees will meet in a state-of-the 
art convention center surrounded by a world-
class natural environment. Based on an average 
spending of $175 per delegate day, an average 
of 25 small meetings annually with a group size 
of 25, and two small conferences annually with 
75-100 attendees, the projected annual 
economic impact to Cordova could range 
between $337,000 and $505,000 according to 
an updated 2009 McDowell report. Cordova is 
in a competitive position to enter the small 
convention market. The connections it has to 
specific interest groups are strong assets.  The 
City will invest professional time and provide 
financial support to market the community to 
meeting planners. The Center will be marketed 
through the Prince William Sound Economic 
Development Council, a member of the Alaska 
Regional Development Organization. City 
Information Services staff will offer direct 
assistance to meeting planners providing 
meeting packets information on the Center’s 
capabilities, making suggestions on meeting 
facilities and accommodations based on the size 
of the group and the group’s needs, and 
assisting with conference registration. The 
Cordova Center will be marketed to increase 
the number of business, professional and 
independent traveler visits. The Center will be 
marketed regionally, state-wide and throughout 
the Pacific Northwest to attract small 
conventions, meetings, trainings, workshops 

set at levels competitive with the other areas 
providing similar services.  Since the Center will 
stimulate growth for local businesses through 
success in the convention market, local business 
support will solidify and expand. Opportunities 
for event sponsorship will increase, and earned 
income and city tax income will grow with each 
new activity and festival. Grant funding will also 
be sought to increase collaborative programming 
and economic development opportunities. There 
will be inter-agency cooperation among 
government, non-profit, educational and 
business partners in seeking a variety of grants to 
build capacity in the community and diversify 
use of the Cordova Center. This philanthropic 
component of the sustainability plan will be key 
to increasing services, enhancing educational 
and cultural experiences for residents and 
visitors, and developing model programs that 
other communities can replicate. Grant funded 
activities will build local and regional support 
for the Center, resulting in more charitable 
giving.  The Cordova Center is the centerpiece of 
the community’s goal to increase economic 
diversification and to stimulate the local 
economy on a year-round basis. The addition of 
a wide variety of economic, cultural and 
educational offerings will improve the quality of 
life in the community. As the number of visitors 
increase, jobs will be created and opportunities 
for small business development will expand. 
Combined, these assets will encourage 
entrepreneurs, retirees, and families to move to 
Cordova, thereby adding to the growing number 
of beneficiaries of the Cordova Center Project.  
 

131



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

A J K L M T U V W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AI AJ AK

DAYS UNTIL DUE (T-MINUS) DATE COLOR CODE

Due Date within  30 Days

Due Date within  60 Days

Phase II Integration Due Date within  90 Days

3/1/2013 9:55 Due Date within 91 Days or farther out

DELIVERABLE
ORDER 

DATE

LEAD 

TIME

COMPLETE 

BY DATE

DAYS 

TILL 

DUE F
e

b
-1

3

M
a

r-
1

3

A
p

r-
1

3

M
a

y
-1

3

J
u

n
-1

3

J
u

l-
1

3

A
u

g
-1

3

S
e

p
-1

3

O
c

t-
1

3

N
o

v
-1

3

D
e

c
-1

3

J
a

n
-1

4

F
e

b
-1

4

M
a

r-
1

4

A
p

r-
1

4

M
a

y
-1

4

J
u

n
-1

4

CITY EVENTS / OPENING
Planning Meetings Weekly X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Construction Complete 07/18/13 240 03/15/14 379 X

Opening Ceremony 12/16/13 120 04/15/14 410 X

Grand Opening: Donors/Funding Agencies 12/23/13 120 04/22/14 417 X

Open House: Community 01/23/14 90 04/23/14 418 X

FAM (Familiarization) Tour: Event Planners 01/05/14 90 04/05/14 400 X

First Scheduled Event 12/16/13 180 06/14/14 470 X

PLANNING & ZONING
Plat Survey 03/16/13 30 04/15/13 45 X

Preliminary Plat Drawn 03/16/13 30 04/15/13 45 X

P&Z Commission Plat Approval 04/20/13 10 04/30/13 60 X

City Council Plat Approval 10/02/13 90 12/31/13 305 X

MARKETING
Construction Updates to Event Planner listserv Monthly X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Cordova Center Marketing Booklet (Chamber) 01/30/13 60 03/31/13 30 X

Direct Mail to Event Planners, Agencies, Non-Profit 05/17/13 45 07/01/13 122 X

Brochure with configuration/layout/service options 06/16/13 60 08/15/13 167 X

Convention promotion (ATIA, AK Chamber) 06/03/13 90 09/01/13 184 X

Web Presence on City Site 08/02/13 30 09/01/13 184 X

Press Release re Cordova as Conf Destination 08/05/13 10 08/15/13 167 X

Press Release to identified Media re Opening 12/31/13 15 01/15/14 320 X

CONFERENCE FACILITY
Staff Hired 10/17/13 90 01/15/14 320 X

Conference Staff Trained 01/15/14 45 03/01/14 365 X

Tables, Chairs, Linens, Skirting 11/02/13 60 01/01/14 306 X

Coffee and Water Service Materials 12/17/13 60 02/15/14 351 X

Fee Schedule 04/01/13 90 06/30/13 121 X

Facility Rental Agreement Approved 05/31/13 30 06/30/13 121 X

Database of Local Food/Beverage Providers 08/17/13 45 10/01/13 214 X

Extension Cords, Microphone, other 01/16/14 30 02/15/14 351 X

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Network Needs Assessment - Internal 07/18/13 45 09/01/13 184 X

Internet Service Comparison 05/02/13 30 06/01/13 92 X

Network Server(s) Configuration 01/31/14 15 02/15/14 351 X

Workstation Upgrades and Configuration 01/31/14 15 02/15/14 351 X

Server and Workstation Installation 02/15/14 28 03/15/14 379 X

LEAD TIME Schedule

Cordova Center Integration Schedule

3/1/2013 Cordova Center Phase II Integration Schedule 2013 0226 lc2 26 13.xls Page 1 of 4

132



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

A J K L M T U V W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AI AJ AK

DAYS UNTIL DUE (T-MINUS) DATE COLOR CODE

Due Date within  30 Days

Due Date within  60 Days

Phase II Integration Due Date within  90 Days

3/1/2013 9:55 Due Date within 91 Days or farther out

DELIVERABLE
ORDER 

DATE

LEAD 

TIME

COMPLETE 

BY DATE

DAYS 

TILL 

DUE F
e

b
-1

3

M
a

r-
1

3

A
p

r-
1

3

M
a

y
-1

3

J
u

n
-1

3

J
u

l-
1

3

A
u

g
-1

3

S
e

p
-1

3

O
c

t-
1

3

N
o

v
-1

3

D
e

c
-1

3

J
a

n
-1

4

F
e

b
-1

4

M
a

r-
1

4

A
p

r-
1

4

M
a

y
-1

4

J
u

n
-1

4

LEAD TIME Schedule

Cordova Center Integration Schedule

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83

Locution System 04/14/11 42 05/26/11 -645

Common Area Phones 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Office Phones 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Phone Programming 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Pots Lines (FA, Elev Mon, Elev Phone, PSE, Fax) 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Printers 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Server/Network Gear 05/18/11 28 06/15/11 -625

WLAN 05/18/11 28 06/15/11 -625

Web Access/password for HVAC Monitoring 05/18/11 28 06/15/11 -625

Comcast Fiber and Coax Install 05/14/11 28 06/11/11 -629

RECEPTION
Reception Paper Recycle Bins 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Publice service equipment (blood pressure) 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

MAIL / COPY
Copy Paper Service 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Office Supplies Service 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Mailing Services 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Mail Sorter Shelves w/Labels 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Office Supply Shelving 07/08/11 7 07/15/11 -595

Shredders 07/08/11 7 07/15/11 -595

KITCHEN / FOOD SERVICE
RefrigeratorSupply & Install 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Soap Dispenser 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Paper Towel Dispensers 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Kitchen Supplies, Utencils, Paper goods etc 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Coffee Supply Stocking (Coffee, Condiments) 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Kitchenette Trash & Recycle Containers 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Coffee Machine 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Microwave Supply & Install 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

TRANSPORTATION
EV Charging station and training 04/22/11 56 06/17/11 -623

Bike Racks 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

FACILITY MANAGEMENT
Fire Alarm Monitoring Contract 05/25/11 21 06/15/11 -625

Security Contract 06/24/11 21 07/15/11 -595

Medical Kits 07/08/11 7 07/15/11 -595

Washington State Elevator Operating Permit 05/18/11 28 06/15/11 -625
Elevator Monitoring Contract 05/25/11 21 06/15/11 -625

EMERGENCY RESPONSE PROCEDURES

3/1/2013 Cordova Center Phase II Integration Schedule 2013 0226 lc2 26 13.xls Page 2 of 4

133



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

A J K L M T U V W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AI AJ AK

DAYS UNTIL DUE (T-MINUS) DATE COLOR CODE

Due Date within  30 Days

Due Date within  60 Days

Phase II Integration Due Date within  90 Days

3/1/2013 9:55 Due Date within 91 Days or farther out

DELIVERABLE
ORDER 

DATE

LEAD 

TIME

COMPLETE 

BY DATE

DAYS 

TILL 

DUE F
e

b
-1

3

M
a

r-
1

3

A
p

r-
1

3

M
a

y
-1

3

J
u

n
-1

3

J
u

l-
1

3

A
u

g
-1

3

S
e

p
-1

3

O
c

t-
1

3

N
o

v
-1

3

D
e

c
-1

3

J
a

n
-1

4

F
e

b
-1

4

M
a

r-
1

4

A
p

r-
1

4

M
a

y
-1

4

J
u

n
-1

4

LEAD TIME Schedule

Cordova Center Integration Schedule

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

Design/select assembly areas 05/12/11 14 05/26/11 -645

Assembly area signage 04/21/11 35 05/26/11 -645

Elevator Lobby Evacuation Maps (1 per lobby) 04/21/11 35 05/26/11 -645

Exit Assembly Area Map 04/21/11 35 05/26/11 -645

BUILDING MAINTENANCE
HVAC Preventative Maintainence 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Facility Training 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Water/Waste Mgmt. Account 06/24/11 21 07/15/11 -595

PSE Elec. Bills 06/24/11 21 07/15/11 -595

Generator Maintenance Service 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Shower curtains 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Shower Soap disp. 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Trash Bags 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Janitorial Supply Shelving 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Keys & Locks 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Trash Cabinets & Containers 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Walk-Off Mats 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Paper Towel Holder 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Toilet Seat cover Holders 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Toilet Paper Holder 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Femine Product dispenser/disposal 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

MOVE COORDINATION
Mover coordination / meeting 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

FURNITURE
Office Space

Office Trash Cans 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Workstations/Desk 06/04/11 56 07/30/11 -580

Office (task) Chairs 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Conference Rooms

Conference Room Tables 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Conference Room Chairs 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Sleeping Rooms

Beds 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Lamps 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Lockers 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Desk 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Common Areas

Televisions (lobby, exercise, dayroom) 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

Exercise Equipment 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

La-z-bobs 07/01/11 14 07/15/11 -595

3/1/2013 Cordova Center Phase II Integration Schedule 2013 0226 lc2 26 13.xls Page 3 of 4

134



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

A J K L M T U V W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AI AJ AK

DAYS UNTIL DUE (T-MINUS) DATE COLOR CODE

Due Date within  30 Days

Due Date within  60 Days

Phase II Integration Due Date within  90 Days

3/1/2013 9:55 Due Date within 91 Days or farther out

DELIVERABLE
ORDER 

DATE

LEAD 

TIME

COMPLETE 

BY DATE

DAYS 

TILL 

DUE F
e

b
-1

3

M
a

r-
1

3

A
p

r-
1

3

M
a

y
-1

3

J
u

n
-1

3

J
u

l-
1

3

A
u

g
-1

3

S
e

p
-1

3

O
c

t-
1

3

N
o

v
-1

3

D
e

c
-1

3

J
a

n
-1

4

F
e

b
-1

4

M
a

r-
1

4

A
p

r-
1

4

M
a

y
-1

4

J
u

n
-1

4

LEAD TIME Schedule

Cordova Center Integration Schedule

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

TV room end tables 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Kitchen Tables 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Kitchen Chairs 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Lobby Chairs/Tables 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

SIGNAGE / ART
Interior Signage 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Parking Designations (Vistor; Carpool; Service, etc.) 06/10/11 35 07/15/11 -595

HR Board 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Union Bulletin Board 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

Artwork Install 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

MISCELLANEOUS
Dumpster Area Recycle Bins 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Access Control Programming 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Building Map direction sign in Riser rooms 06/17/11 28 07/15/11 -595

Sound Transit Landscaping Scope 06/16/11 29 07/15/11 -595

Educational Display at ST 05/20/11 56 07/15/11 -595

3/1/2013 Cordova Center Phase II Integration Schedule 2013 0226 lc2 26 13.xls Page 4 of 4

135



3601 “C” Street, Suite 600 * Anchorage, Alaska 99503 * (907) 278-8878 * Fax (907) 278-5779 * www.mcc-cpa.com

February 4, 2013

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Cordova
P.O. Box 1210
Cordova, AK 99574

The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of City of Cordova, Alaska (the “City”), 
which comprise governmental activities, business-type activities, aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, required budgetary comparison statements and aggregate 
remaining fund information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 which collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements.  We have also been engaged to report on supplementary 
information that accompanies City of Cordova's financial statements. 

The financial statements will include the City of Cordova, the primary government, Cordova 
Community Medical Center, Cordova School District, and Cordova Volunteer Fire Department.  You 
acknowledge that we are the “group auditor” of the City’s basic financial statements as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2012. We will not audit the financial statements of Cordova Community 
Medical Center, a discreet component unit.  Those financial statements will be audited by component 
auditors.  Our firm, but a separate audit team, has audited the financial statement of the Cordova 
School District. In our professional judgment, the financial statements of the Cordova Community 
Medical Center and the Cordova School District constitute significant components of City of 
Cordova.  Therefore, in connection with our audit, we intend to place reliance on and make reference 
in our report to financial statements of those components which will be or were audited by other 
auditors. We will communicate with the component auditors in accordance with professional 
standards. We deem this the most effective and efficient audit approach for these components.   

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means 
of this letter. 

Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial 
statements.  In addition, we will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements 
as a whole:

136



City of Cordova
Page 2

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
2. Schedule of State Financial Assistance
3. Individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules

We will also perform the audit of City of Cordova as of December 31, 2012, so as to satisfy the audit 
requirements imposed by the Single Audit Act and the U. S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular No. A-133 and the State Single Audit Regulation 2 AAC 45 and the State of Alaska 
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits (the State Audit Guide).

The Responsibilities of the Auditor

We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS); “Government Auditing Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; the provisions of the Single Audit Act, OMB Circular A-133, and OMB’s 
Compliance Supplement; and State Single Audit Regulation 2 AAC 45 and the State Audit Guide.  
Those standards, circulars, supplements, and guides require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even 
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. Also, an audit is not 
designed to detect errors or fraud that are immaterial to the financial statements. The determination 
of abuse is subjective; therefore, Government Auditing Standards do not expect us to provide 
reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the City’s, preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial 
statements that we have identified during the audit.

We will also communicate to the City Council (a) any fraud involving senior management and fraud 
(whether caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material misstatement of 
the financial statements that becomes known to us during the audit, and (b) any instances of 
noncompliance with laws and regulations that we become aware of during the audit (unless they are 
clearly inconsequential).

Our reports on internal control will include any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
controls of which we become aware as a result of obtaining an understanding of internal control and 

137



City of Cordova
Page 3

performing tests of internal control consistent with requirements of the standards and circulars 
identified above. Our reports on compliance matters will address material errors, fraud, abuse, 
violations of compliance obligations, and other responsibilities imposed by state and federal statutes 
and regulations or assumed by contracts, and any state or federal grant, entitlement, or loan program 
questioned costs of which we become aware, consistent with requirements of the standards and 
circulars identified above.

The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial Reporting 
Framework

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and when appropriate, the City Council, 
acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

a. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

b. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; 

c. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for 
informing us of all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of 
such controls of which it has knowledge; 

d. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 
activities, and for informing us about all known material violations of such laws or regulations. In 
addition, management is responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to 
prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, and others where 
the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Management is also responsible for 
informing us of its knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others; 

e. For (a) making us aware of significant vendor relationships where the vendor is responsible for 
program compliance, (b) following up and taking corrective action on audit findings, including the 
preparation of a summary schedule of prior audit findings, and a corrective action plan, and (c) report 
distribution including submitting the reporting package(s);and 

f. To provide us with: 

(1) Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation, 
and other matters; 

(2) Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the 
audit; 

138



City of Cordova
Page 4

(3) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence; 

(4) When applicable, a summary schedule of prior audit findings for inclusion in the single 
audit reporting package; and 

(5) If applicable, responses to any findings reported on the schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and when appropriate, the City 
Council, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit 
including among other items: 

a. That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this letter; and 

b. That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the City complies with the laws and 
regulations applicable to its activities, and for informing us about all known material violations of 
such laws or regulations. In addition, management is responsible for the design and implementation 
of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud or abuse, and for informing us about all known 
or suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity involving management, employees who have 
significant roles in internal control, and others where the fraud or abuse could have a material effect 
on the financial statements or compliance. Management is also responsible for informing us of its 
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or abuse or suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity 
received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, short sellers, or 
others.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Management agrees to 
include the auditor’s report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the 
supplementary information and that indicates that the auditor has reported on such supplementary 
information. Management also agrees to present the supplementary information with the audited 
financial statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with audited financial 
statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date of issuance of the supplementary information and 
the auditor’s report thereon.

The City Council is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks of fraud or abuse within 
the entity, and its knowledge of any fraud or abuse or suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity.

The City agrees that it will not associate us with any public or private securities offering without first 
obtaining our consent. Therefore, the City agrees to contact us before it includes our reports or 
otherwise makes reference to us, in any public or private securities offering.

139



City of Cordova
Page 5

Our association with an official statement is a matter for which separate arrangements will be 
necessary. The City agrees to provide us with printer's proofs or masters of such offering documents 
for our review and approval before printing and with a copy of the final reproduced material for our 
approval before it is distributed. In the event our auditor/client relationship has been terminated when 
the City seeks such consent, we will be under no obligation to grant such consent or approval.

Because Mikunda, Cottrell & Co. will rely on the City and its management and City Council to 
discharge the foregoing responsibilities, the City holds harmless and releases Mikunda, Cottrell & 
Co., its partners, and employees from all claims, liabilities, losses, and costs arising in circumstances 
where there has been a knowing misrepresentation by a member of the City’s management which has 
caused, in any respect, Mikunda, Cottrell’s breach of contract or negligence. This provision shall 
survive the termination of this arrangement for services.

City of Cordova’s Records and Assistance

If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the City’s records, the availability of appropriate 
audit evidence, or indications of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements 
because of error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our 
professional judgment, prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the 
unilateral right to take any course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining 
to express an opinion, issue a report, or withdraw from the engagement.

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should be 
reflected in the City’s books and records. The City will determine that all such data, if necessary, will 
be so reflected. Accordingly, the City will not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our 
possession.

The assistance to be supplied by City personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analyses 
of accounts, will be discussed and coordinated with Jon Stavig, Finance Director.  The timely and 
accurate completion of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance 
of our audit report.

In connection with our audit, you have requested us to perform certain non-audit services necessary 
for the preparation of the financial statements, including:

 Preparation of the financial statements and footnotes
 Preparation of the data collection form
 Assistance with cash to accrual entries

The independence standards of the “Government Auditing Standards” issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States GAS require that the auditor maintain independence so that opinions, 
findings, conclusions, judgments, and recommendations will be impartial and viewed as impartial by 
reasonable and informed third parties. Before we agree to provide a non-audit service to City of 
Cordova, we determine whether providing such a service would create a significant threat to our 
independence for GAS audit purposes, either by itself or in aggregate with other non-audit services 
provided. A critical component of our determination is consideration of management’s ability to 
effectively oversee the non-audit service to be performed. City of Cordova has agreed that Jon 
Stavig, Finance Director, possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience and that the individual 

140



City of Cordova
Page 6

understands the services listed above to be performed sufficiently to oversee them. Accordingly, the 
management of City of Cordova agrees to the following: 

1. City of Cordova has designated Jon Stavig, a senior member of management, who possesses 
suitable skill, knowledge, and experience to oversee the services. 

2. City of Cordova will assume all management responsibilities for subject matter and scope of the 
nonaudit services listed above.

3. City of Cordova will evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed. 

4. City of Cordova accepts responsibility for the results and ultimate use of the services. 

GAS further requires we establish an understanding with the management (and those charged with 
governance) of City of Cordova of the objectives of the non-audit service, the services to be 
performed, the entity's acceptance of its responsibilities, the auditor’s responsibilities, and any 
limitations of the non-audit service. We believe this letter documents that understanding.

Other Relevant Information

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, a copy of our most recent peer review report is 
enclosed, for your information. 

Fees, Costs, and Access to Workpapers

Our fees for the audit and accounting services described above are based upon the value of the 
services performed and the time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement, plus direct 
expenses. Our fee estimate and completion of our work is based upon the following criteria: 

a. Anticipated cooperation from City personnel 
b. Timely responses to our inquiries 
c. Timely completion and delivery of client assistance requests 
d. Timely communication of all significant accounting and financial reporting matters 
e. The assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement

If any of the aforementioned criteria are not met, then fees may increase. Interim billings will be 
submitted as work progresses and as expenses are incurred. Billings are due upon submission.

Our professional service fee for the audit will not exceed $45,700, plus out of pocket costs for travel, 
lodging, typing, printing, etc. unless the scope of the engagement is changed, the assistance which 
the City has agreed to furnish is not provided, or unexpected conditions are encountered, in which 
case we will discuss the situation with you before proceeding.  For example, a significant increase in 
the number of major federal or state programs for single audit purposes, and/or ARRA programs, 
may result in an increase in the fee that cannot be anticipated at this time.  Also, in the prior couple of 
years, we have had to make a significant number of adjusting journal entries, correct the grant 
analysis worksheets and federal and state grant schedules, and update the depreciation schedules, etc.  

141



City of Cordova
Page 7

The additional time for these services is not included in the above audit fee and if required for the FY 
12 audit, will be billed separately.  All other provisions of this letter will survive any fee adjustment.

In the event we are requested or authorized by City of Cordova or are required by government 
regulation, subpoena, or other legal process to produce our documents or our personnel as witnesses 
with respect to our engagement for City of Cordova, the City will, so long as we are not a party to the 
proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our professional time and expenses, 
as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in responding to such requests.

The documentation for this engagement is the property of Mikunda, Cottrell & Co.  However, you 
acknowledge and grant your assent that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their 
designee, other government audit staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have 
access to the audit documentation upon their request and that we shall maintain the audit 
documentation for a period of at least three years after the date of the report, or for a longer period if 
we are requested to do so by the cognizant or oversight agency. Access to requested documentation 
will be provided under the supervision of Mikunda, Cottrell & Co. audit personnel and at a location 
designated by our Firm.

Claim Resolution

City of Cordova and Mikunda, Cottrell & Co. agree that no claim arising out of services rendered 
pursuant to this agreement shall be filed more than two years after the date of the audit report issued 
by Mikunda, Cottrell & Co. or the date of this arrangement letter if no report has been issued. City of 
Cordova waives any claim for punitive damages. Mikunda, Cottrell & Co.’s liability for all claims, 
damages and costs of City of Cordova arising from this engagement is limited to the amount of fees 
paid by City of Cordova to Mikunda, Cottrell & Co. for the services rendered under this arrangement 
letter.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of City of Cordova’s financial 
statements. Our report will be addressed to the City Council.  We cannot provide assurance that an 
unmodified opinion will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to 
modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the 
engagement.

In addition to our report on City of Cordova’s financial statements, we will also issue the following 
types of reports: 

 Reports on the fairness of the presentation of City of Cordova's schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards and schedule state financial assistance for the year ending December 31, 
2012. 

 Reports on internal control related to the financial statements, and major programs. These 
reports will describe the scope of testing of internal control and the results of our tests of 
internal controls. 

 Reports on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements. We will report on any noncompliance which could have a material effect on the 

142



City of Cordova
Page 8

financial statements and any noncompliance which could have a material effect, as defined 
by OMB Circular A-133 and/or the State Audit Guide, on each major program. 

 A schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

This letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between Mikunda, Cottrell 
& Co. and City of Cordova, superseding all proposals, oral or written, and all other communications, 
with respect to the terms of the engagement between the parties.

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and 
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements including our respective 
responsibilities.

Michelle Drew, CPA
Audit Director, Mikunda, Cottrell & Co.

Confirmed on behalf of City of Cordova:

____________________________________ _______________________________
City Council Representative Date

____________________________________ _______________________________
City Manager Date

____________________________________ _______________________________
Finance Director Date

143



City of Cordova
Page 9

144



Pending agenda:  
 

Capital Priorities List Meeting –March 2013, June 2013, September 2013, December 2013 
 

Committees:  
 

Cordova Center Committee: Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, Dan Logan, Mark Lynch, Sam 
Greenwood, Moe Zamarron, Dave Reggiani, Cathy Sherman  

 
Fisheries Advisory Committee: David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim 

Holley, AML; Torie Baker, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; John Bocci; and 
Jeremy Botz, ADF&G  

  
Cordova Trails Committee: Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, Jim Kallander, Toni Godes, and 

David Zastrow  
 
Public Services Building Design Committee: David Reggiani - Chairman, Chief Bob (Griffiths), 

Martin Moe, Jim Kacsh, Dick Groff, Mike Hicks, Tom Bailer  
 
E-911 Committee: Chief Bob Griffiths – Chairman, Bret Bradford, Gray Graham, Dick Groff, 

Mike Hicks (and/or Paul Trumblee), David Allison, George Covel  
 
City Manager Assessment Committee: Cindy Bradford, Mark Frohnapfel, Don Sjostedt, Kelly 
 Weaverling, EJ Cheshier, James Kacsh, Dave Reggiani 
 

Calendars:  
 

3 months of calendars are attached hereto  
March 2013; April 2013; May 2013 

145



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

   1 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

2 

3 4 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

5 Cordova Regular 

Election 

Polls open 7a—8p 

LMR 

6  

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

7 8 9 

10 11 

 

5:30 Parks & Rec 

LMR 

12 

 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

13 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

14 

7:00 special mtg 

to certify election 

15 16 

17 18 19 20   

tbd HSB LMR 

7:15 pub hrg LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31     Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

March 2013 

146



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

1 2 3 

tbd HSB LMR 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

4 5 6 

7 8 

 

5:30 Parks & Rec 

LMR 

9 

 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

10 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

11 12 13 

14 15 

 

7:00 BoE Hearing 

 

16 17 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

18 19 20 

21 22 

 

City’s Financial Audit 

23 

 

———————— 

24 

 

City’s Financial Audit 

25 

 

———————— 

26 

 

City’s Financial Audit 

27 

28 29 30    Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

April 2013 

147



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

  1  

tbd HSB LMR 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

9 10 11 

12 13 

 

5:30 Parks & Rec 

LMR 

14 

 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

15 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31 Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

May 2013 

148


	cc.6
	h.min.7
	h.min.8
	j.rpt.10
	j.rpt.11
	j.rpt.12a
	j.rpt.12b
	k.corres.13
	k.corres.14
	k.corres.15
	k.corres.16
	l.ords.17a
	l.ords.17b
	l.ords.17c
	l.ords.17d
	Memo_City_Council_Mobile_Grid_Lease
	File No.:   02-060-136-1

	CCDraftResolution02__13-07_leaseMobileGrid
	LEASE_Mobile_Grid_4_13_13
	City of Cordova    Mobile Grid Trailers, Inc.
	Attn: City Manager    Attn: Ric & Osa Schultz
	Cordova, Alaska 99574    Cordova, AK 99574

	CITY:     CITY OF CORDOVA

	ADPA05F.tmp
	File No.:   02-060-136-1


	l.ords.18a
	l.ords.18b
	m.unf.19a
	m.unf.19b
	m.unf.19c
	m.unf.19d
	m.unf.19e
	m.unf.19f
	m.unf.20
	n.new.21a
	n.new.21d
	n.new.22a
	n.new.22b
	n.new.23
	n.new.24a
	n.new.24b

